
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
District Office, 18966 Ferretti Road 

Groveland, CA 95321 
(209) 962-7161 www.gcsd.org

AGENDA 
April 13, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 

LOCATION: TELECONFERENCE - SEE BELOW 
IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 AND TELECONFERENCED MEETINGS: 

Based on the mandates by the Governor’s in Executive Order 33-20 and the County Public 
Health Officer to shelter in place and the guidance from the CDC, to minimize the spread of the 
coronavirus, please note the following changes to the District's ordinary meeting procedures: 

• The District office is open to the public at this time from 9am to 4:30pm Monday through
Thursday and 9am to 4pm on Friday (Closed between 12pm-2pm).

• The meeting will be conducted via teleconference using Zoom. (See authorization in the
Governor’s Executive Order 29-20)

• All members of the public seeking to observe and/or to address the GCSD Board may
participate in the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically in the manner
described below.

HOW TO OBSERVE AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING:  
Computer, tablet or smartphone: Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by 
navigating to  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7688070165 using a computer with internet access 
that meets Zoom's system requirements  

Telephone: Listen to the meeting live by calling Zoom at (253) 215-8782 or (301) 715-8592.  
Enter the Meeting ID# 279-281-953 followed by the pound (#) key. More phone numbers can be 
found on Zoom's website at https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM  if the line is busy.  

Mobile: Log in through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter Meeting ID# 279-281-
953. 

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Written/ Read Aloud: Please email your comments to board@gcsd.org, write "Public 
Comment" in the subject line. In the body of the email, include the agenda item number and 
title, as well as your comments. If you would like your comment to be read aloud at the meeting 
(not to exceed three minutes at staff's cadence), prominently write "Read Aloud at Meeting" at 
the top of the email. 

Telephonic / Electronic Comments: During the meeting, the Board President or designee will 
announce the opportunity to make public comments by voice and in writing, and identify the cut 
off time for submission of written comments. Comments can be emailed in advance of the Board 
meeting and up to the time of Board consideration of the item during the meeting. Send email to  
board@gcsd.org, and write "Public Comment" in the subject line. Once you have joined the 
Board meeting online using Zoom, public comments can also be submitted using the Chat 
function while in the Zoom Meeting. In the body of the email or Chat, include the agenda item 
number and its title, as well as your comments. The Board President will also public comment to 
be made verbally prior to consideration of each agenda item, and will explain the procedure for 
making verbal comments during the meeting.  Once the public comment period is closed, 
comments timely received in advance of consideration of the agenda item will be read aloud 

1

http://www.gcsd.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7688070165
https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM
mailto:board@gcsd.org
mailto:board@gcsd.org


GCSD REGULAR MEETING AGENDA   Page 2 of 4 
April 13, 2021, 10:00 a.m. 
 

ALL AGENDA MATERIAL ARE AVAILABLE ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE AT WWW.GCSD.ORG OR MAY BE 
INSPECTED IN THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT OFFICE AT 18966 FERRETTI ROAD, 
GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA  
Any person who has any questions concerning this agenda may contact the District Secretary.  In compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at 209-962-7161.  
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. (28FR35.102-35.104 ADA Title 11) 

prior to Board action on the matter. Comments received after the close of the public comment 
period will be added to the record after the meeting. 

 
ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION: 

Board Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities and others who need assistance. 
Individuals who need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation 
(including auxiliary aids or services) to observe and/or participate in this meeting and access 
meeting-related materials should contact Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary, at least 48 hours 
before a regular meeting at (209) 962-7161 or rpearlman@gcsd.org. Advanced notification will 
enable the District to swiftly resolve such requests to ensure accessibility. 
 

PUBLIC RECORDS: 
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a meeting are available 
for public inspection. Those records that are distributed after the agenda posting deadline for 
the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all or a 
majority of the members of the Board. The Board has designated the District's website located 
at https://www.gcsd.org as the place for making those public records available for inspection. 
The documents may also be obtained by calling the District office. 
 
 

  

2

http://www.gcsd.org/
mailto:rpearlman@gcsd.org
https://www.gcsd.org/


REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
District Office, 18966 Ferretti Road 

Groveland, CA 95321 
(209) 962-7161 www.gcsd.org  

 

 
 

TELECONFERENCE AGENDA 
April 13, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 
 

 
Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call of Board Members  
Janice Kwiatkowski, President 
Nancy Mora, Vice President 
John Armstrong, Director 
Spencer Edwards, Director 
Robert Swan, Director 
 

1. Approve Order of Agenda 
2. Public Comment 

Members of the public are appreciated for taking the time to attend this meeting and 
provide comments on matters of District business. Public comments are subject to a 3-
minute time limit; 10 minutes on an individual topic. Although no action can be taken on 
items not listed on the agenda, please know we are listening carefully to your comments. 
 

3. Closed Session (Public may comment on closed session item prior to Board convening into closed session)  

A. PUBLIC Employee Performance Evaluation Pursuant to Govt. Code Sec. 54957 
Title: General Manager 
 

B. Announcement of Reportable Action taken in Closed Session    
4. Information Items 
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action will 
be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future 
agenda. Public comments will be taken after each report is provided. 

A. Staff Reports 
i. Fire Department Report 
ii. General Manager’s Report 
iii. Operations Manager’s Report 
iv. Administrative Services Manager’s Report 

1. Presentation on the Laserfiche Forms Workflow 
 

5. Consent Calendar 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate 
discussion. 

A. Approve Minutes from the March 9, 2021 Regular Meeting 
B. Approve Minutes from the March 30, 2021 Special Meeting  
C. Accept March 2021 Payables 

3

http://www.gcsd.org/


GCSD REGULAR MEETING AGENDA Page 4 of 4 
April 13, 2021, 10:00 a.m. 

ALL AGENDA MATERIAL ARE AVAILABLE ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE AT WWW.GCSD.ORG OR MAY BE 
INSPECTED IN THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT OFFICE AT 18966 FERRETTI ROAD, 
GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA  
Any person who has any questions concerning this agenda may contact the District Secretary.  In compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at 209-962-7161.  
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. (28FR35.102-35.104 ADA Title 11) 

D. Approval of Resolution 10-2021 Commending Battalion Chief Jude Acosta for his
Efforts and Accomplishments While Serving the Groveland Fire Department

E. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions Except by Title

6. Old Business
(Items tabled or carried forward from a previous meeting to be considered on this agenda. The Board of Directors intends to 
consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on each individual agenda 
item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action) 

A. Discussion and Board Direction on Groveland CSD Fire Department Operational and
Financial Matters Including Tuolumne County Fire Authority’s Measure V, Intended
to Provide Funding for Fire and Emergency Response Services

7. Discussion and Action Items
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is 
allowed on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action. 

A. Review of 2021/22 Budget Preparation Plan and Schedule
B. Appointment of an AD HOC Committee(s) for Review and Recommendation of the

Water and Sewer Master Plans, Community Facilities District Financial Impact
Analysis, and Development Impact Fee Report

C. Approval of a 2020/21 Budget Amendment for the Completion of the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Reservoir #2 Inundation Study and Emergency Action Plan as
Required by Mandate of the State Department of Water Resources

D. Approval of a 2020/21 Budget Amendment Recognizing Grant Revenue in
the Amount of $286,650 from the Office of Emergency Services and
$300,000 in Expenses Related to the Purchase of Emergency Generators
and including Authorization for their Sole Source Purchasing

8. Adjournment

4

http://www.gcsd.org/


Groveland Community Services District 
Fire Department / CALFIRE 
18966 Ferretti Road Groveland, CA 95321 

Staff Report 
April 13, 2021 

  To: Board of Directors 

    From: Andy Murphy, Assistant Chief 
By:  Jude R. Acosta, Battalion Chief 

Subject: Monthly Activity Report – March 1, 2021 to March 31, 2021 

Operations: 

Emergency Incident Response: 

On March 1, 2021 Engine 781 and Engine 4466 responded to a reported vehicle fire at 10918 
Yosemite Springs Road.  Upon arrival, there was a single passenger vehicle fully involved 
with fire threatening a structure.  Fire crews immediately took suppression action containing it, 
preventing any extension into the structure or wildland.  The cause of the fire is currently 
under investigation. 

On March 27, 2021 CAL FIRE and Groveland Fire units responded to a reported escaped 
debris fire in the area of Short Line Road and Hells Hollow.  Upon arriving at scene, there 
was 10 acres of brush and bug killed timber litter burning at a moderate rate of spread uphill.  
One structure was immediately threatened, and fire crews protected the structure and 
aggressively attacked the fire.  Additional CAL FIRE and Tuolumne County Fire resources 
were ordered to protect the structures on Smith Station Road.  Fire Crews worked vigorously 
worked through the night containing the fire at 22 acres.  The cause of the fire is currently 
under investigation. 

5



Fire Chiefs Report 
April 13, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

Apparatus and Equipment: 

Apparatus Description Status 

Engine 781 2009 Pierce Contender In Service 
Engine 787 2000 Freightliner FL112 In Service 
Engine 783 1995 International Model 15 In Service 
Utility 786 2008 Chevrolet 2500 In Service 

Training: 

In addition to our monthly Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) curriculum and engine 
company performance standards, Battalion personnel received the following specialized 
training:  

 Stokes Basket Immobilization
 Picket Anchor System
 Rapid Intervention Crew (RIC)Training
 Electrical Hazards
 Building Construction
 Auto Extrication
 CAL FIRE Local 2881 Union Representative Class

6



1
0
0

40
1
0
0
0
0

15
1 Given
0 4
0  Inc #3153 Medical Aid Prospect Heights

1  Inc #3462 Vehicle Accident Smith Station Rd

3  Inc #3951 Vehicle Accident Wards Ferry Rd

0  Inc #4017 Vegetation Fire Short Line Rd

0
TOTAL 62 (58 calls in GCSD district, 4 calls in Tuolumne County)

Structure Fire
Commercial Structure Fire

Vegetation Fire
Vehicle Accident

Vehicle Accident/Pin in

MONTH - March 2021

Medical Aid
Fire Menace Standby

Fire Other

Alarm Sounding
Odor Investigation

Debris Fire

Auto Aid
Tuolumne County

Vehicle Fire

Haz Mat
Landing Zone

Plane/Heli Crash
Public Assist
Smoke Check

31 35

22

42
34 31

38
50 47

62

0

20

40

60

80

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GCSD Monthly Activity
March 2012-2021 

90 86 87
113 110 111

146
156

134
162

0

50

100

150

200

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GCSD Activity Year to Date 
2012-2021 

7



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: April 13, 2021  

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 4Aii. General Manager’s Report 

During the month of March 2021, we continued to make significant progress on a number of 
time sensitive projects and critical initiatives.  If there are topics discussed for which you would 
like additional information, please feel free to contact myself, Rachel or Jennifer.   

BIG CREEK/2G CLEARWELL PROJECT 
Included in this report is a copy of the agenda for our most recent engineering staff meeting 
regarding the Clearwell Project.  The Butler Way Booster Pump renovation is nearing 
completion and expected to be final by the end of April.  The pump system will have a special 
sound-reducing enclosure to reduce noise leaving the site, and which will be installed later in the 
project due to manufacture and delivery timelines.   

The contractor expects to have the Big Creek Clearwell and chlorine contact tank back on line by 
the end of the month of April. Based on the project schedule discussed below, following Big 
Creek the contractor will mobilize on Second Garrotte or be directed to paint the tank exteriors 
during the summer and begin work on Second Garrotte after July 4.      

To date, the project is under budget but somewhat behind schedule.  We are requiring the 
contractor to provide an accurate, detailed plan on how they will achieve the project completion 
timeline of 134 working days, in order to avoid the $1000 per day liquidated damages charged to 
the contractor after the 134 working days. There is never an optimal outcome when a contractor 
is paying $1000 per day to complete the work.  As of the day of preparation of this report, we 
have not yet received Disbursement Request 1 from the state, although it has been approved and 
we await only for the check to be cut.  Disbursement Request 2 and 3 have also been accepted 
and are in various stages of state processing and approvals.      

DOWNTOWN GROVELAND/BOF SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM RENOVATION 
PROJECT 
We have received the 90% complete set of sewer project improvement plans, totaling 107 sheets 
of construction drawings.  Luis and Adam are working through review of the drawings with the 
goal of final plans for bidding in another two weeks as shown below.  An engineer’s estimate of 
probable cost is being prepared based on the 90% plans and as soon as received, a special 
meeting will be called to seek approval to enter the bidding phase.   

• Final Submittal (Plans and Contract Documents)  April 16, 2021 

8



• Solicit Bids  April 21, 2021 
• Open Bids  May 27, 2021 
• Award  June 8, 2021 
• Notice to Proceed (construction begins)  June 14, 2021 

ADDITIONAL ITEMS OF INTEREST 
Tracking System for Engineering Project Assignments – District management has found that the 
number of projects and assignments made to our District engineer has grown to the point where 
we needed to develop a system of more formal tracking.  We are scheduling more frequent 
meetings and working through the details of the tasks and tracking system.  For your 
information, the list of projects is included below, in no particular order: 

1. DWR Irrigable landscape data review
2. Clearwell project construction management
3. Sewer Collection System Replacement Project design, bidding and construction

management
4. Water distribution system replacement project design; bidding and construction

management on funding award
5. Headworks and Irrigation, LS 2 project design, bidding and construction management
6. Yonder Yosemite Project Feasibility and Design review/coordination
7. Airport estates closeout and GCSD acceptance of infrastructure
8. Water Distribution system evaluation re unusual operating conditions
9. AMI water meter upgrade project design and USDA/BOR Watersmart funding

applications
a. Staff conducting onsite pilot testing and vendor interviews

10. AWS relocation/permanent location design and USDA funding application
11. Wastewater plant pond 1 renovation plans and specifications/funding plan

a. Include a plan to deal with mass grease and debris from lift stations
12. WWTP Reservoir 2 Inundation Study and Emergency Response Plan Preparation
13. District paving projects (admin parking lot & tank 2) construction management
14. District gravel roads (spray fields) included with headworks project
15. Concrete and grading around sludge press and WWTP  - added to and included with

headworks project
16. Generator replacement projects – multiple locations

a. Cal OES funding, DWR IRWM funding, potential USDA funding
17. Fuel tank painting and automation project
18. Prepare feasibility letter and Advance Funding Agreement Exhibit B cost estimates for

Long Gulch project (4-02-2021)

Wastewater Plant Reservoir #2 Inundation Study – AM Consulting Engineers has contracted 
with Dudek to perform the aerial mapping by use of a Unmanned Aerial Vehicle, or drone.  We 
are working through the details of approval to fly the drone from the      

Long Gulch Ranch Feasibility Evaluation – During last month’s regular meeting, the Board took 
the position that the proposed 19 lot subdivision on the Long Gulch property should annex to the 
District to receive services, including water and fire.  Since that time, the project applicant has 

9



 

contacted the District and has requested that we evaluate the feasibility of providing service to a 
larger project in the same vicinity.  The property owner has submitted the required application 
and initial deposit, and our District engineer will be determining the scope and cost of the 
required engineering evaluation, and GCSD management will estimate the legal and 
administrative costs of project review.  As always, the first step is to determine if water and 
sewer service is feasible to serve the location.  If it is and the developer chooses to proceed, the 
project will be returned to the Board for consideration of a position on annexation and Advance 
Funding Agreement.      
 
Water/Sewer Master Plan Review – Following significant delays, we have received the first draft 
of the Water/Sewer Master Plan; which is currently under review.  Staff has recommended that a 
Board committee be established to review and become familiar with the master plans, as they 
have significant implications on future major capital projects and capacity development to serve 
future development.  Based on the complexity of the document, we expect a two month review 
period before presentation to the full board.   
 
Community Facilities District (CFD) and Development Impact Fee Draft Document Review 
We have been working closely with NBS in the completion of two separate studies and process 
development intended to financially offset the impacts of new land development projects on 
District services.  This has been a relatively intense process of data compilation, review of 
technical memoranda prepared by the consultant, agreement on rate application concepts and 
methodologies, and working through budget projections for the future.  We have received first 
drafts of the CFD Financial Impact Analysis and Impact Fee Study, which will now be reviewed 
by Board committee and returned to the Board in May or June for consideration.   
 
Frequently Asked Questions – Tuolumne County Fire Authority Measure V 
Included in this report is the first draft of the responses to frequently asked questions regarding 
the Tuolumne County Fire Authority’s Measure V to be considered by voters in an all-mail 
ballot due June 8, 2021.  This information is posted on the GCSD Website as well.   
 
Prevailing Wage Decision by CA Supreme Court – A decision was reached yesterday by the 
supreme court of California regarding certain types of contracted work now being subject to 
payment of prevailing wages as required under the Public Contract Code.  As more guidance on 
this rolls out we will keep the Board informed.  This could have an impact to the District budget 
when we contract for any type of service, including facility maintenance, cleaning, utility bill 
mailing? Pest control?  More information is available here: https://www.csda.net/blogs/vanessa-
gonzales/2021/04/05/ca-supreme-court-broadens-scope-of-prevailing-wage   
 
The “American Jobs Plan” 
The plan being introduced to Congress offers an estimated $2.25 trillion in infrastructure 
investments over eight years. It is assumed that some negotiated version of this Plan will be 
approved and the information presented below conveys some potential concepts on how the 
District could position itself to maximize community benefit from the funding.  We will closely 
watch and participate as needed to stay abreast of the opportunities: 
 
Potential for GCSD Broadband Infrastructure Development (and Feasibility Study) 

10

https://www.csda.net/blogs/vanessa-gonzales/2021/04/05/ca-supreme-court-broadens-scope-of-prevailing-wage
https://www.csda.net/blogs/vanessa-gonzales/2021/04/05/ca-supreme-court-broadens-scope-of-prevailing-wage
https://www.csda.net/blogs/vanessa-gonzales/2021/04/05/biden-announces-225-trillion-infrastructure-propos


$100 billion to build “future proof” broadband infrastructure in unserved and underserved 
areas so that the U.S. can finally reach 100 percent high-speed broadband coverage. It also 
prioritizes support for broadband networks owned, operated by, or affiliated with local 
governments, non-profits, and co-operatives—providers with less pressure to turn profits and 
with a commitment to serving entire communities; promotes price transparency and 
competition among Internet Service Providers; and reduces the cost of broadband Internet 
service and promotes more widespread adoption.    

Potential Funding for Water, Wastewater System, Park and Fire Funding 
The following are potential sources of funding to continue replacing and upgrading our water 
and sewer infrastructure, upgrade the WWTP and produce recycled water for baseball field and 
park irrigation, build trails including those that serve as alternate evacuation routes, fire fuels 
reduction projects, new water metering systems, etc.  

$56 billion in grants and low-cost flexible loans to states, Tribes, territories, and disadvantaged 
communities across the country to modernize aging water systems by scaling up existing, 
successful programs. 

$50 billion in dedicated investments to improve infrastructure resilience, including: 
Increasing resilience in urban infrastructure and roads, rail, and other transportation assets. The 
proposal also targets investments to support infrastructure in those communities most 
vulnerable physically and financially to climate-driven disasters and to build back above 
existing codes and standards. Additionally, the President’s plan provides funding for the western 
drought crisis by investing in water efficiency and recycling programs, and invest in 
protection from extreme wildfires 

Potential Linkage Between YARTS and GCSD Parks 
$85 billion to modernize existing public transit and help agencies expand their systems to meet 
rider demand. 

Also included in the agenda material is a Request for Proposals from the Tuolumne County 
Transportation Council for consulting services to identify evacuation routes. 

11



GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVCIES DISTRICT 

BIG CREEK AND SECOND GARROTTE CLEARWELLS REHABILTIATION 

PROJECT 

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS MEETING 

April 6, 2021 @ 9:00 AM 

AGENDA 

I. INTRODUCTIONS

II. CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SNAPSHOT

a. Total Project Cost (Contractor)

b. Total Project Cost (Total Project)

$3,118,200.00 

$3,954,200.00 

c. Budget Spent to Date (Contractor)

d. Budget Spent to Date (Total Project)

e. Total Project Contingency

f. Contingency Used to Date

$1,155,310.00 

$1,366,318.00 

$361,000.00 

$79,676.00 

g. Percentage Funding Used to Date (Contractor)

h. Percentage Funding Used to Date (Total Project)

i. Percent Contingency Used to Date

37.1% 

34.6% 

22.1% 

j. Days for Completion 134 Working Days 

k. Elapsed Days 82 Working Days 

l. Remaining Days 52 Working Days 

III. CONSTRUCTION SITE REPORTS

a. Progress to Date

b. Contractor (1-MONTH LOOK AHEAD)

IV. CHANGE ORDERS

a. Fully Executed

i. Change Order No. 1 – Additional Structural Repairs in Big Creek Clearwell

($33,217.80 and 8 Additional Working Days)

ii. Change Order No. 2 – Relocation of ARV to Adjacent Wye Fitting at Butler

Way Pump Station (No Cost and 2 Additional Working Days)

iii. Change Order No. 3 – Installation of Insulation in Both the Big Creek and

Second Garrotte New Electrical Cabinets ($953.00 and No Working Days)

iv. Change Order No. 4 – Inspection Sand Blast (Time & Material)

($46,457.90 and 4 Additional Working Days)

12



b. Received 

i. Pending Change Order No. 3 – Additional Work at Butler Way (Time & 

Material)  

c. Denied  

i. Pending Change Order No. 1 – Oil in Tank ($48,539.00 and 14 additional 

Working Days) 

ii. Pending Change Order No. 6 – Lid Pin Holes Repairs ($14,200 and 2 

additional Working Days) 

V. SUBMITTAL REVIEW 

a. Approved Submittals 

i. Submittal No. 1 – 20 and 22 – 36 

b. Remaining Submittals 

i. Submittal No. 21 and 37 

VI. REVIEW RFI LOG 

a. Responded RFI’s 

i. RFI No. 1 – 30 

b. Pending RFI’s 

i. None 

VII. Claims 

a. Claim No. 1 – Oil in the Tank 

i. Responded 

b. Claim No. 2 – Extra Money for Coating Material 

i. Responded 

c. Claim No. 3 – Relocation of ARV 

i. Claim Removed 

VIII. PAYMENT REQUESTS 

a. Processed 

i. Disbursement Request No. 1 ($331,640.00) 

1. Should receive this week.  

ii. Disbursement Request No. 2 ($298,997.00) 

1. Estimate end of April to early May. 

iii. Disbursement Request No. 3 ($673,932.00) 

1. Estimate middle of May. 

13



b. The State will not be processing Disbursement Requests from March 26, 2021 to 

July 1, 2021 (End of Fiscal Year). 

i. State allows grantees to pull out bridge loans if processing times exceed 

45 days.  

1. Interest on loan will be funded through Project contingency fund.  

IX. PROJECT SCHEDULE 

a. Project Contract Documents state that construction shall be avoided during the 

months of May to August. 

i. Butler Way Pump Station should be fully operational the last week in 

April.  

ii. Big Creek Site should be back in service between the last week in April.  

iii. Coat exterior of tanks during these months? 

X. CONCERNS 

XI. ADJOURN 

14



Frequently Asked Questions – April 6, 2021 
Tuolumne County Fire Authority – Measure V (Mail Ballot due June 8, 2021) 

Contents 
What is Measure V? .................................................................................................................................. 1 

Why is Measure V being Proposed? ......................................................................................................... 2 

What Have the Fire Departments Done to Reduce Cost? ........................................................................ 2 

Aren’t We Doing Okay Now? Aren’t Fire Department Response Times Good? ....................................... 3 

What is the Tuolumne County Fire Authority? ......................................................................................... 3 

If approved, How Much Will Measure V Cost Me and How is it Collected? ............................................. 4 

What will Measure V Pay For? .................................................................................................................. 4 

Will Measure V Reduce Response Times? ................................................................................................ 4 

Can Measure V Money be Diverted Away from Fire Services? ................................................................ 5 

Will Tax Money Generated in Our Community go to Fund Our Fire Department? .................................. 5 

Where Can I Find More Information on Measure V? ............................................................................... 5 

What Accountability Measures Are In Place For Measure V? .................................................................. 5 

If this Measure Passes, When Will It Go Into Effect And How Long Will It Be In Place? .......................... 5 

What happens if my area approves this measure but others don't? ....................................................... 6 

What will happen if Measure V doesn’t pass?.......................................................................................... 6 

Why aren't the entities doing  separate measures? ................................................................................. 6 

If Measure V passes, will my fire department lose funding from other sources? .................................... 6 

What is the purpose of the 2% annual increase on this tax? ................................................................... 6 

Why aren’t Twain Harte, Strawberry and MiWuk/Sugar Pine Districts participating? ............................ 6 

 

What is Measure V? 
Measure V is a special tax measure being submitted to the voters in an all-mail ballot scheduled for June 
8, 2021.  The ballots and voter information will be mailed during the week of May 10, 2021 to all 
registered voters within the boundaries of the Tuolumne County Fire Authority.  To be counted, ballots 
must be returned by June 8, 2021.  If approved by the voters, the tax will generate approximately 
$4,183,950 to specifically fund fire protection, suppression, and emergency response services.  This 
funding will be distributed as shown below directly to the Tuolumne County Fire Department, Sonora 
City Fire Department, Groveland Fire Department, Jamestown, Columbia and Tuolumne Fire Districts, 
based on the number of properties served by each.   

15

https://www.gcsd.org/files/b5f8e4cad/TCFA+Boundaries.pdf


 

Entity Total # of Parcels Estimated Revenue 
City of Sonora 2261 $313,425 
Columbia Fire Protection District 217 $28,650 
County of Tuolumne 24,068 $3,117,975 
Groveland Community Services District 4087 $552,525 
Jamestown Fire Protection District 362 $50,175 
Tuolumne Fire District 897 $121,200 
Total 31,892 $4,183,950 

 

Why is Measure V being Proposed? 
This funding measure is being proposed to provide our citizens the opportunity to vote on a secure, 
reliable and predictable source of revenue specifically for fire and emergency response services in 
Tuolumne County.  Fire departments throughout the county have been meeting for years to identify 
ways to most efficiently and effectively provide consistent and reliable fire services to all areas of the 
county. The lack of funding adequate to cover basic fire department expenses including personnel and 
equipment replacement is a common concern of the fire departments who formed the Tuolumne 
County Fire Authority.  The Fire Chief for the County Fire Department presented to the Board of 
Supervisors in July 2020 an overview report regarding how dire the fire funding situation has become 
countywide.   Measure V is intended to address these deficiencies and provide funding for staffing, 
operating and equipment replacement to secure the viability of fire services now and in the future. 

Departments have for many years been financially challenged due to the dispersed, remote populations 
we serve, increasing fire fuel loads, increasing drought and weather-related fire incidents, aging fire 
engine fleet, reduced availability of volunteer firefighters, increasing cost of equipment, personnel, fuel 
and insurance. The state has continuously increased regulations and laws affecting fire services which 
has resulted in increased costs.  At the same time, the revenue available to these departments has been 
nearly flat due to economic downturns, property tax limitations and even reduced revenue when the 
state shifted property taxes away from fire departments.     

What Have the Fire Departments Done to Reduce Cost? 
For decades the County and the Fire Districts kept costs low by relying on volunteer personnel to 
respond to calls for service and to assist the career staff with those responses. As the population ages, 
two income families are more prevalent, and stricter training requirements for firefighters have all 
contributed to the decline of the volunteers providing fire protection services. This has resulted in a 
growing need to provide paid staff to respond to calls for service in the County, which has increased 
costs.  

The Fire Districts/Departments have maintained staffing at less than industry standard levels, frozen 
wages and stipends, deferred maintenance on equipment, continued to operate fire engines that in 
many cases are 10 or more years overdue for replacement and not upgraded to the latest technologies 
and equipment for firefighter safety and saving lives.   

16

https://www.gcsd.org/files/d6a56a807/TCFD+WHAT+IS+DIRE+July+2020.pdf


Aren’t We Doing Okay Now? Aren’t Fire Department Response Times Good? 
With the resources currently available, our fire departments have performed very well in saving lives 
and property from fire and response to medical emergencies.  We have also had luck on our side in the 
past few years, aside from a few very close calls.  Fire Department response times of four minutes for 
the first engine and eight minutes for all engines to arrive are the industry standard for areas with 
populations of more than 500 per square mile.  In rural areas with less population a response time of up 
to fourteen minutes meets standards.   The Fire Department Response Time map shows the areas of the 
county that are within nine and fourteen minute response areas from existing fire stations.  Many areas 
of the county are outside these response time standards, which can result in increased risk of loss of life 
and property. As detailed in the Fire services Overview Report, many of these stations are not staffed 
and rely on volunteer response until the next closest staffed department can arrive.  The report also 
details the aged and substandard condition of fire engines and response vehicles which can have a 
significant, negative effect on response times.  

For someone experiencing a cardiac arrest, the survival rate is reduced by approximately 7% to 10% for 
every minute defibrillation is delayed; with the first five minutes being the most critical.  After five 
minutes, the survival rate drops below 30% and at 10 minutes, there is less than a 10% chance of 
survival.  The Home Fire Timeline graphic illustrates the building fire progression timeline and shows 
that flashover, which is the point at which the entire room erupts into fire after all the combustible 
objects in that room reach their ignition temperature, can occur as early as 3:00 to 5:00 minutes from 
the initial ignition. Human survival in a room after flashover is extremely improbable. After five minutes 
of free burning, structure fires are extremely difficult to contain to the room of origin and the whole 
house becomes threatened.   

Another factor in controlling fire and saving lives is the number of firefighters and engines needed to 
simultaneously and effectively perform the tasks of rescue, fire suppression, and ventilation; and/or to 
keep small fires from becoming catastrophic under adverse conditions. It is typically recommended that 
14 or more fire personnel respond to a structure fire within 11:30 minutes from the 911 call to 
effectively perform these critical tasks.  Due to the minimal staffing (2 to 4 firefighters) at each staffed 
fire station in the county, mutual aid among all fire departments is necessary to achieve the required 
number of fire personnel on scene AND to ensure that additional emergency calls can be covered when 
a large turnout is needed to control a dangerous fire.   Each department in the county is only as strong 
as their neighbor and that is the reason for creating the TCFA to ensure a solid financial and operational 
condition of the fire departments in Tuolumne County.   

What is the Tuolumne County Fire Authority? 
The Tuolumne County Fire Authority was formed to allow the member fire departments to join as a 
separate legal entity with the ability to levy a uniform and specific fire tax on parcels within its 
boundaries.  The Fire Authority does not have separate staff and is not a new government agency that 
provides services on its own.  Each fire department member of the Fire Authority maintains its own 
normally operating fire department with full autonomy in making decisions and setting its own service 

17

https://www.gcsd.org/files/aec05931b/Tuolumne+County+Population+Density+2020.jpg
https://www.gcsd.org/files/bb519d51b/Station+Drive+Time_18x24+Revised+without+seasonal+stations.pdf
https://www.gcsd.org/files/d6a56a807/TCFD+WHAT+IS+DIRE+July+2020.pdf
https://www.gcsd.org/files/33b0f72da/Home+Fire+Timeline.jpg


levels.  The Fire Authority is most simply a legal means to seek voter approval to levy a separate special 
fire tax that secures funding only to be spent on fire services.   

The Fire Authority is governed by a Board of Directors made up of one appointee and one alternate from 
each member fire department.  As a voter, you elect the Board members who govern your local fire 
department, and who also sit on the Board of the Fire Authority.  The Fire Authority Board meetings are 
open to the public and the Authority must file annual reports on the amount of fire special tax levied, 
collected and spent. More information on the Tuolumne County Fire Authority is available here.    

If approved, How Much Will Measure V Cost Me and How is it Collected? 
An annual special tax in the amount of up to a maximum of $75 will be levied by the Tuolumne County 
Tax Collector on every unimproved residential and commercial parcel, and a maximum of $150 for every 
improved residential and commercial parcel within the boundaries of the Fire Authority. Example 1: if 
you own a property with a house or commercial business on it, the fire tax will be $150 per year. 
Example 2: If you own a property with a house or commercial business and also own the adjacent, 
vacant parcel; your tax will be $150 (improved parcel) + $75 (unimproved parcel).  When you build a 
residence or commercial business on your vacant parcel, the next tax year after you are done building 
the fire tax will increase from the Unimproved rate of $75 to the Improved rate of $150 per year.  The 
fire special tax will increase by 2% each year so that the specific fire funding will keep up with the cost of 
providing the service for the long term.  The Fire Authority Board is not required to levy the tax at its 
maximum rate approved by the voters as detailed above, and can levy at a lower level but can never 
levy the fire tax at a higher rate than approved.   

What will Measure V Pay For? 
Measure V will establish a consistent, predictable source of funding that will be provided to and used by 
local fire departments only, for the purpose of protecting lives and property from fire, to replace aging fire 
engines, firefighter safety and emergency response equipment such as “Jaws-of-Life”, reduce wildfire 
risks and improve emergency response capabilities.  The individual fire departments then make their own 
decisions locally, in their normally budget process, about how the fire special tax money will be spent on 
their fire department operations and equipment.      

Will Measure V Reduce Response Times? 
Yes, funding from Measure V will be spent to increase available personnel and equipment in needed 
locations with the intent of increasing effectiveness and reducing response times. Measure V will 
provide for: 

• Replacement fire engines and emergency response equipment to make them more functional, 
safe and reliable 

• Additional fire stations and/or additional engines and firefighters at existing stations to provide 
for more rapid and reliable mutual aid coverage 

• Matching funds for available grants for increased staffing, fire and emergency preparedness and 
response to allow fire personnel to more quickly and effectively control evolving incidents 

18

https://www.gcsd.org/tuolumne-county-fire-authority
https://www.gcsd.org/files/b5f8e4cad/TCFA+Boundaries.pdf


• Funding for planning and grant match funds for implementing fire safety and wildfire reduction 
activities such as fire fuel breaks, evacuation and safe area planning, developing alternate 
evacuation routes, etc 

Can Measure V Money be Diverted Away from Fire Services?  
No, Measure V money is levied by the Fire Authority specifically and only to fund expenses of the 
member fire departments related to providing fire and emergency response services within their 
response areas, which extend throughout the county.  This money belongs to the Fire Authority member 
departments as soon as it is received by the County Tax Collector, and is paid to the departments 
throughout the year on an established schedule. Since this is a “Special Tax” approved by the voters for 
a specific purpose, the federal government, state or county have no legal access to these fire tax funds 
other than to receive the per-parcel allocation of the tax for the County Fire Department as discussed 
above.       

Will Tax Money Generated in Our Community go to Fund Our Fire Department? 
Yes, each fire department will automatically receive the amount of fire tax generated within their 
specific boundaries.  For Example, as shown in the tax allocation table above, the City of Sonora contains 
2261 improved and unimproved parcels, which is estimated to generate $313,425 in fire special tax 
annually for, and specifically paid to the City Fire Department.  Groveland Community Services 
District/Groveland Fire Department contains 4087 developed and undeveloped parcels, estimated to 
generate $552,525 annually to fund the Groveland Fire Department services. As previously stated, fire 
special tax money generated in one department/District area cannot be allocated by the Fire Authority 
or County Tax Collector to another department or to the county.   

Where Can I Find More Information on Measure V? 
More information on the Tuolumne County Fire Authority and Measure V can be found on the Authority 
website: https://www.gcsd.org/tuolumne-county-fire-authority .  Also please watch for notification of 
virtual and in-person meetings where information on the Measure can be shared and public opinions 
heard.  This document will be updated on a regular basis as needed to address questions raised by 
persons wishing to educate themselves on Measure V.  

What Accountability Measures Are In Place For Measure V? 
All meetings and decisions of the Tuolumne County Fire Authority and its member Departments and 
Districts are open to the public, and all records, budgets, expenditures and actions of each is a public 
record available to the public.  An annual fire special tax report is required to be prepared and filed with 
each fire department, and made readily available to the public.  The financial accounting of each fire 
department entity receiving the fire special tax must be in compliance with specific, legally required 
accounting principles with regular financial audits conducted by independent accounting firms.   

If this Measure Passes, When Will It Go Into Effect And How Long Will It Be In Place?  
Measure V will go into effect July 1, 2021 and be levied beginning on the 2021/22 tax rolls.  The tax will 
remain in effect until no longer needed to fund fire and emergency response services in the county, or 
until repealed by the registered voters in the county.   

19

https://www.gcsd.org/tuolumne-county-fire-authority


What happens if my area approves this measure but others don't?  
To pass, the measure MUST receive a two-thirds Yes vote amongst all ballots received from 
registered voters in the TCFA’s fire districts. If a two-thirds majority is not achieved, the measure 
fails and the tax cannot be implemented. 

What will happen if Measure V doesn’t pass? 
The answer will be different for each of the fire department members of the TCFA. For the Groveland 
Fire Department, this means that expenses will continue to exceed property tax revenue; funding will 
not be available to replace fire engines, with an average age of 23 years or expensive emergency 
response equipment. As detailed in the Groveland Fire Master Plan1 completed in 2020 by Citygate 
Consulting, if additional revenue is not received by GCSD for fire services, GCSD will not have adequate 
funds within the next few years to continue the current level of station staffing, with an option to 
consider discontinuing fire services altogether.    

Why aren't the entities doing  separate measures? 
The fire departments in the county are all struggling financially and rely on each other for mutual aid 
backup.  The fire chiefs chose to work together through the formation of the TCFA so that all 
departments remain viable.  The process for placing a measure on the ballot is costly and complicated 
and the chiefs have clearly stated that our fire services are only as strong as the weakest link; and they 
all need funding.   

If Measure V passes, will my fire department lose funding from other sources? 
No, there will be no loss of funding.  In fact, Measure V will open the door to additional grant funding by 
providing dollars for better planning and required grant matching funds.    

What is the purpose of the 2% annual increase on this tax? 
The expense of operating a fire department increases every year, and if the measure did not provide for 
an increase in the tax to cover cost inflation, then funding may not be available to accomplish the 
purposes for which Measure V was proposed. Fire Department costs that increase annually include 
staffing, training and compliance with state mandates, equipment, fuel, insurance and vehicle/facility 
maintenance.     

Why aren’t Twain Harte, Strawberry and MiWuk/Sugar Pine Districts participating? 
Twain Harte, Strawberry, and MiWuk have all been proactive in securing dedicated funding to help 
sustain their fire districts and improve services through similar tax measures. 

 

 
1 See Fiscal Review Summary starting on page 90 of the master plan, Findings 24, 25 and 26 on page 91 and 
Recommendations 5 and 6 on page 91 and 92 

20

https://www.gcsd.org/files/a3642c0f1/gcsd_fire_master_plan_05122020.pdf


Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 1 of 27 
 
 
 

  
 
  

TUOLUMNE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COUNCIL 
Request for Proposal (RFP) 

for Professional Services to Prepare an Evacuation Routes and Emergency 
Communications Strategies for Tuolumne County 

Issued: April 1, 2021 
 
Notice 
The Tuolumne County Transportation Council (TCTC) is soliciting proposals to retain a firm for professional 
services specializing in planning for emergency evacuations and communications strategies during an 
emergency event, transportation strategies, community outreach and collaborative planning elements to 
create a flexible, living document that can be utilized by Tuolumne County and City of Sonora officials along 
with the Tuolumne County Office of Emergency Services staff to most effectively respond during local 
emergencies. 
 
Background 
Tuolumne County is located centrally in the California Mother Lode area along the western slope of the Sierra 
Nevada mountain range.  The County extends from the foothills to the Sierra crest and is bordered on the 
north by Calaveras County, on the South by Mariposa County, on the west by Stanislaus County and on the 
east by Alpine and Mono Counties.  Tuolumne County is approximately 2,217 square miles and includes 
portions of the Stanislaus National Forest and Yosemite National Park.  Approximately 78 percent of the land 
within the County is owned by government agencies.  Sonora is the only incorporated city in the Tuolumne 
County Region and is also the County Seat. 
 
The Department of Finance population estimate for Tuolumne County is 54,039 for 2020.  The population 
projection for Tuolumne County is approximately 63,000 by the year 2040. 
 
Many parts of Tuolumne County fall within the high fire and extremely high fire danger metrics established by 
CalFire and insurance companies.  A large and growing percentage of residents have either lost home 
insurance, struggle to find insurers willing to provide coverage or/and pay very high premiums for the 
insurance they do have.  The California FAIR plan, California’s home insurance marketplace of last resort is the 
only insurer willing to provide coverage for many residents. 
 
Previous mega-fire events in the County include the 2013 Rim Fire which became the 3rd largest fire in the 
state (at the time, although it was quickly surpassed by subsequent events). 
 
 
 

21



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 2 of 27 

Project Description 

This project is an emergency evacuation study that focuses on multiple items including- identification of 
vulnerable populations most likely to struggle with an evacuation (for a myriad of reasons including physical 
limitations, age, lack of secondary access), identifying secondary egress opportunities for communities where 
none currently exists, evaluating the local and State roadway network(s) that must be used to deliver people 
from harms way (see Scope of Work for full list of project deliverables).  There have been many hours invested 
in preparing emergency plans addressing various natural disaster threats.  However, significantly less time has 
been encumbered in detailing how to keep existing roadways from getting congested and maximizing the 
volume of vehicles and goods that can be moved effectively. An illustration of the importance of this type of 
planning was seen in Paradise, the 2018 Camp Fire, ago as traffic was at a standstill with roadways 
overwhelmed by a mass exodus as the community hustled to distance itself from the approaching 
conflagration. 

Tuolumne County is served by three State highways: 49,108, 120 that will be forced to bear the brunt of a 
similar situation in this region.  Acknowledging the changing climate and a potential increase in the severity 
and frequency of these types of incidents serves as the impetus for this project.  

Planning will coordinate with: The Safety and Natural Hazards Elements of the General Plan; TCTC 
Transportation Emergency Operations Plan (TEOP); Highway 108 Strategic Fire Plan; Cal Fire Strategic plan for 
Tuolumne/Calaveras units; Wildland Fire Plan; the existing Emergency Operations Plan and the Tuolumne 
County Sheriffs department. 

Additionally, this project will need to consider policies and strategies for addressing new and future 
development projects in the County/City—commercial, residential and resort (tourism based) and the impact 
and considerations that should be discussed analyzed and vetted as part of land use permitting process. 

The final product is not desired in a rigid, this is the Plan style format, but rather a series of resources, tools, 
strategies and information that can assist decision makers and incident command in best utilizing options.  This 
includes strategies for maximizing roadway capacity, public outreach and communication during an incident.  
The project team is open to proposals that deliver the identified scope of work in unique, helpful or time tested 
manners that are not explicitly called out in the RFP.  

Overall Project Objectives 

1. Identify high risk (housing) communities (one way in/out, poor road conditions, difficult topography
(steep grades), isolated, large % vulnerable population)

2. Create strategies to assist in the evacuation/sheltering in place of these communities (Schools/Ballfields)

3. Identify State/local roadways likely to be overwhelmed in a natural disaster scenario

4. Create strategies to manage congestion and evacuation

5. Identify and prioritize capital improvements aimed at correcting circulation system choke points and
needed secondary access

22



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 3 of 27 
 
 
 

6. Deliver a User Manual style Operations Manual for use by Incident response teams 
 

7. Identify alternative uses, such as active transportation for secondary access routes  
 

8. Recommend public information material for residents and visitors to improve understanding of 
emergency evacuation public information outlets  

 
9. Support a County-wide Tabletop or demonstration project 

 
 
 
Schedule 
 
1. Request for Proposals released                  April 1, 2021 
 
2. Last day to submit written questions on RFP     April 9, 2021 
 
3. Responses to questions posted on website                                                       April 14, 2021 
 
4. Deadline to submit Proposals                   May 6, 2021 
 
5. Selection process concluded (tentative)                  May 2021 
 
6.         Agreement(s) executed (tentative)                                                                        June 9, 2021 
 
Communications 
It is the TCTC’s intent to provide the same information to all proposers and questions will not be answered 
individually by telephone.  Any oral responses to questions are not binding on the TCTC.  Prospective 
proposers may make written inquires by email concerning the RFP to obtain clarification of requirements. The 
TCTC will post all of the questions received, along with TCTC’s written responses, to the TCTC website-- 
http://tuolumnecountytransportationcouncil.org. It is the responsibility of the proposers to check the TCTC 
website to review the questions and responses.  Except for questions that might render the award of the 
Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Plan Agreement(s) invalid, the TCTC will not respond to any 
questions submitted after April 9,2021.  Any communications related to this RFP should be directed to: 
 
Tyler Summersett, Project Manager 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Mailing:  2 South Green Street, Sonora, CA, 95370 
Physical: 975 Morning Star Dr, Ste A, Sonora, California 95370 
Email:  tsummersett@co.tuolumne.ca.us  
 
Addenda 
Any changes to the Request for Proposal document(s) will be made by written addendum.  Upon issuance, 
such addenda shall be incorporated in this Request for Proposals document and shall prevail over inconsistent 
provisions of earlier issued documentation.  Addenda will be posted on the TCTC website.  It is the 
responsibility of the proposers to check the TCTC website for any addenda. Proposers must certify receipt of 

23

http://tuolumnecountytransportationcouncil.org/
mailto:tsummersett@co.tuolumne.ca.us


Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 4 of 27 
 
 
 

the addenda on the appropriate form (see ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT) to be included and submitted with 
their qualifications. 
 
Contents of Proposals 
Each qualifications submittal shall concisely respond to this request for proposals as outlined in the project 
description.  The submittal shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following: 
 
1. Discussion of the consultant’s qualifications for the Scope of Work included with the RFP, along with a 

discussion of the understanding of the project requirements and the firm’s capability to provide the 
requested scope of services (expertise in providing an emergency response, transportation system 
analysis, public outreach, coordination of multiple stakeholders, communication strategies during high 
stress events and any other qualifications that uniquely qualify the project team to respond to the 
scope of work). 

 
3. Project Management Plan. 
 
4. List of Project Personnel and their duties and qualifications. 
 
5. Past experience in similar work.  List of projects similar in nature to the project, showing project cost 

control, quality control and ability to meet schedules. 
 
6.     List of past public and private sector clients. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
A Consultant Selection Committee, appointed by the TCTC Executive Director, shall review and rate each 
submittal and, if necessary, conduct an interview with the consultant's project management and key 
personnel of the most qualified firm(s). 
 
The Consultant Selection Committee shall identify the rank of submittals in a selection order based upon the 
following criteria: 
 
Rating Items 
1. Firm’s specialized experience, qualifications and technical competence as related to the services 

required.  (10 points possible) 
 
2. Project manager’s specialized qualifications and technical experience as related to the services 

required.  (20 points possible) 
 
3. Firm’s demonstration of a clear understanding of the services required as evidenced in their written 

and/or oral statements.  (50 points possible) 
 
5. Firm’s present work load, availability of staff and list of major projects contracted to perform.  (15 

points possible) 
 

24



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 5 of 27 
 
 
 

6. Tuolumne County address of prime consultant and/or sub-consultants.  (10 points possible) 
 
Consultant Selection 
Upon completion of the rating of the consultant firms, the Executive Director may negotiate a draft agreement 
with the top-ranked consultant(s).  The goal of negotiation is to agree on a final agreement that will deliver 
the services or products required based on the professional qualifications of the selected firm(s). 
 
If an agreement cannot be reached with any of the consultants recommended by the Selection Committee, 
the Selection Committee may be asked to make additional recommendations. 
 
Upon attainment of a draft agreement(s), the draft agreement(s) will be forwarded internally within the TCTC 
for review of content prior to final approval and execution by the TCTC.  
 
The TCTC hereby notifies all proposers that it will affirmatively ensure that in regard to any agreement(s) 
entered into pursuant to this RFQ, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to 
submit qualifications in response to this invitation, and that proposers will not be discriminated against on the 
grounds of race, religion, creed, medical condition, color, marital status, ancestry, gender, age, national origin 
or physical or mental disability in consideration for award.  In addition, the TCTC requires that any consultant 
hired by the TCTC to perform any work activity does not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, creed, medical condition, color, marital status, ancestry, sex, age, 
national origin or disability.   The consultant(s) shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended from time to time.   
 
The TCTC retains the right to withdraw this Request for Qualifications at any time, without prior notice, to 
reject any or all qualifications submittals submitted, and/or to waive any irregularities or informalities in the 
qualification or in the qualification procedure.   
 
Fee and Method of Payment 
Progress payments will be made monthly in arrears based upon the work completed by task at the close of the 
billing period and allowable incurred costs.  The total cost upon project completion is not to exceed executed 
contract amount.  Consultant will include with each progress payment request a monthly written progress 
report for work completed, as described in Article 20, Reporting Requirements, of this Agreement.  Progress 
payment requests shall be based on the amount of work completed per task in accordance with Scope of 
Work, and shall be billed in accordance with the Rate Schedule included in Exhibit C.  Progress payment 
requests and monthly progress reports shall be reviewed and approved by the TCTC Executive Director prior 
to processing payments.  Progress payments will be limited to 90% of the budget for the tasks completed.  The 
10% retention will be released upon completion, presentation and approval of the final Project.  
 
Agreement for Professional Consulting Services 
This Request for Proposals does not obligate the Tuolumne County Transportation Council to award an 
agreement for professional engineering and transportation planning consulting services, nor does it commit 
the TCTC to pay for any costs associated with the preparation and submittal of qualifications.   
 

25



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 6 of 27 
 
 
 

A draft copy of the Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies Plan Services Agreement to be executed 
between the parties follows as Attachment A to this RFQ.  It is imperative that the prospective consultants 
familiarize themselves with each of the provisions contained in the Agreement form prior to preparing and 
submitting their qualifications.  If substantive revisions to the Agreement will be proposed by the consultant 
if selected, these items/issues should be clearly specified in their proposal submitted. 
 
 
Insurance Requirements 
The successful consultant will be required to maintain, throughout the term of the agreement work, insurance 
of the type and amount indicated in Exhibit A. 
 
Proposal Submission & Deadline 
All proposals submitted and accompanying materials shall become the property of the Tuolumne County 
Transportation Council upon submittal.  Submittals must be received and date stamped at the Tuolumne 
County Transportation Council office no later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, May 6, 2021.  Five (5) copies of 
each proposal and electronic copy of the proposal should be sealed in an envelope which is clearly marked "To 
Provide Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies Plan to the Tuolumne County Transportation 
Council" and delivered to:  
 

Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Tyler Summersett – Project Manager 

2 South Green Street  
Sonora, CA  95370 

 
The consultant’s name and return address must also appear on the envelope.  Submittals may also be hand 
delivered to the TCTC office, 975 Morning Star Dr. Ste. A, Sonora, California 95370.  
 
Proposals submitted will be received only at the address shown above and must be received by the time 
indicated.  It is the sole responsibility of the consultant to send or deliver its qualifications submittal so that it 
is received by the time and date required, regardless of postmark.  Any qualifications submittal received after 
said time and/or date or at a place other than the stated address, cannot be considered and will not be 
accepted.  No e-mailed or facsimile qualifications submittals will be considered.  The TCTC time stamp shall be 
considered the official timepiece for the purpose of establishing the actual receipt of qualifications submittals. 
 
Scope of Work  
 

1. Project Kickoff meeting with Consultant (and Project Development Team) 

Task 1.1: Discuss consultant proposal to complete grant funded project.  Review project timeline, 
stakeholder participation, public participation plan, deliverable schedule and existing plans and 
coordination efforts.   

• Stakeholders come prepared to share previous planning efforts related to current 
project/existing planning documents/upcoming projects and activities related to grant study 

• Identify any missing Stakeholders 

26



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 7 of 27 
 
 
 

• Discuss previous activations of Emergency Operations Center (EOC); traffic management 
issues/roadway capacity concerns; Vulnerable populations definitions;   

Responsible Party: TCTC/Stakeholders/Consultant 
 

 Task # Deliverable 

1.1 Agenda; list of related planning efforts; new Stakeholders to invite 
 

2. Identification of high risk housing subdivisions, commercial centers, community facilities 

Task 2.1: Provide maps and other visual collateral identifying County subdivisions and resources 
likely to be threatened by natural disasters. Work with Fire, Law Enforcement and other 
stakeholders to determine and prioritize high-risk housing subdivisions and other community 
facilities. 

This task will also consider future land use development.  Tuolumne County is a tourist community 
and new development whether it be residential, commercial or resort (hotel/motel + supporting 
amenities) will also be an important component of planning for evacuation.  As Tuolumne County 
considers new development that is in the wildland interface it will become increasing important to 
plan for resilience.  

Responsible Party: Consultant  

 

Task # Deliverable 

2.1 GIS data, maps, graphics and planning collateral to support high risk resources 
 

3. Identification of roadway network, deficiencies and strategies for increasing 
capacity/efficiency/effectiveness, access  

Task 3.1: Provide maps and other visual collateral identifying Countywide roadway network  
• Identify secondary access issues for Tuolumne County Subdivisions 
• Propose specific improvements for secondary access routes (already identified), along with 

funding sources and project lead agency 
• Identify roadway networks likely to fail due to congestion in an evacuation scenario 
• Propose strategies to mitigate impacts of limited roadway network and increase ability to 

effectively move people out of an impacted area 
• Identify and prioritize circulation system improvements to alleviate potential chokepoints  

Responsible Party: Consultant 
Task 3.2: Secondary Access as opportunity for Active Transportation analysis 
This task is intended to identify existing trails that may also be used as an evacuation route, such 
as the Sugar Pine Trail.  Analysis should try and identify active transportation opportunities for 
evacuation routes when not being used for this purpose.  Additionally, opportunities to connect 
communities via evacuation routes that also serve as active transportation resources are desired.  

27



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 8 of 27 
 
 
 

This is also true community protection measures such as fire breaks.  Identifying added value such 
as year round uses, that can also operate for a secondary purpose during evacuation are a 
priority. 

Responsible Party: Consultant 

Task # Deliverable 

3.1 GIS data, maps, graphics and planning collateral to support Roadway network 
analysis 

3.2 Active Transportation + secondary access analysis document 
 

4. Identify Vulnerable populations likely to struggle in evacuation 

Task 4.1: Provide maps and other visual collateral identifying County populations likely to be 
threatened by natural disasters; includes populations that will have the most difficult time with self-
evacuation. Propose strategies to coordinate evacuation of transportation disadvantaged 
populations. 

 
Responsible Party: Consultant 
  

Task # Deliverable 

4.1 GIS Data, maps, graphic and planning collateral supporting vulnerable 
populations analysis 

 

 

5. Identification of Shelter-in-place locations throughout the County 

Task 5.1: Provide maps and other visual collateral identifying shelter-in-place locations throughout 
the County (for situations when evacuation is not feasible)  

Responsible Party: Consultant 
  

Task # Deliverable 

5.1 GIS data, maps, graphics and planning collateral supporting shelter in place 
analysis 

 

6. Public Participation/Outreach Plan (POP/PPP) 

Task 6.1: Design a dynamic public outreach plan intended to generate input from a diverse 
audience of local citizens  

28



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 9 of 27 
 
 
 

• Work collectively with project stakeholders, consultant to create a comprehensive outreach 
strategy and forums that encourage public participation, input and continued engagement 

• Propose outreach strategies that include: meetings in multiple Tuolumne County communities 
and the City of Sonora; meeting on different days and times (including possible weekend 
meetings), include outreach in Spanish; targeted outreach to vulnerable populations, Tribal 
bodies/populations; be conscientious of those that are transit dependent or have mobility 
issues that could limit participation; offer virtual public meetings 

• Utilize Stakeholders that have a standing relationship with target populations to lead these 
outreach components, such as Public Health, Tuolumne County Transit, Social Service/Human 
Service agencies, Commission on Aging, Tribal partners; Fire districts, Destination Marketing 
Org (VTC), etc  

• POP/PPP will be a living outreach document that will continue to be updated throughout the 
project.  It will also set the standard for outreach process, setting meetings, etc 

• Create a website to support the project and link agencies websites to it so folks can find the 
project site through various stakeholder websites. 

• Utilize Social Media to effectively advertise community input opportunities and raise 
awareness about the project 

• Create a commercial or other video content to support the project, raise awareness, or to 
serve as collateral that promotes project goals, objectives or deliverables 

• Involve Columbia College (if possible).   They have a robust fire-fighting program and may 
have ideas on an impactful partnership. 

Responsible Party: TCTC, Stakeholders/Consultant 
Task 6.2: Follow up communication strategy 
• After engaging the public, regular project communications/updates continue to go out for 

the duration of the project.  Establish project website.  Include updates that can be sent out 
using Social Media 

Responsible Party: Consultant/TCTC 

Task 6.3: Public Workshop/Presentations 
• Create inter-active public workshop and outreach materials, collateral and supporting items 

for effective and engaging the public.  These are the meetings and meeting material 
themselves, as opposed to the Public Outreach Planning documents.  Make opportunities 
available for input to come in multiple ways and in a manner that is convenient for 
participants.  Be mindful of limitations that some individuals may have to attend public 
outreach activities, including—lack of internet, limited or no automobiles, English as a second 
language, reluctance to speak in front of groups and other factors that may influence 
participation from the public.     

 

Task # Deliverable 

6.1 Public Outreach Plan—identifying comprehensive objectives/strategies for 
project 

6.2 Project update progress reports/website maintenance/ document 
distribution/video content/social media posts/ survey materials/ etc 

6.3 Public Workshops/presentations/outreach collateral 

29



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 10 of 27 

7. Communication Deployment Plan

Task 7.1: Design a dynamic communication plan to be implemented in support of evacuation
efforts

• Physical signs to be placed along roadways
• Tune radio to specific station broad-casting directions from Incident command
• Implementation of one-way streets
• List Best Management Practices here (effective examples from other areas- State, National,

International areas)
• Unique solutions for Tuolumne County
• Other strategies born out of project

Responsible Party: Consultant

Task # Deliverable 

7.1 Communication Deployment Plan complete with strategies for multiple 
response strategies 

8. Draft Plan & Final Plan

Task 8.1: Release Draft document for Administrative review

• Work closely with project stakeholders to address all comments and suggestions for
document improvement

Responsible Party: TCTC/Stakeholders/Consultant
Task 8.2: Release Draft document for public review.  A series of public meetings in geographically 
diverse communities of Tuolumne County.  Pay particular attention to setting meetings and doing 
outreach that target disadvantaged communities.  This may mean a series of meetings, offered 
at different times, days, formats.  Preparing information in Spanish may be a project need.   

Task 8.3: Presentation(s) of Final Draft to TCTC, TC BOS and Sonora City Council for final Adoption 
Responsible Party: TCTC/TC/Sonora/Consultant 

Task # Deliverable 

8.1 Administrative Draft + revisions 
   8.2 Public Draft + revisions 

   8.3 Final Draft- Adoption (Consultant to give final presentation to TCTC/TC/Sonora) 

30



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

 

  
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 11 of 27 
 
 
 

9. Tabletop scenario-- Practice Evacuation Plan (training scenario)  

Task 9.1: Design a tabletop exercise intended to replicate a likely threat that will necessitate 
activation of strategies outlined in the new plan.  This will allow Stakeholders to meaningfully 
engage the plan by practicing the tactics and approaches therein 

Responsible Party: Consultant/Project Development Team 

Task # Deliverable 

9.1 Tabletop exercise of practical application of strategies presented in Plan 
  

31



Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communications Strategies Page 12 of 27 

ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

(To be submitted with qualifications packet) 

Receipt of the following addenda is hereby acknowledged: 

Addendum No. Proposer’s Initials  

Addendum No. Proposer’s Initials  

Addendum No. Proposer’s Initials  

Addendum No. Proposer’s Initials  

32



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies         Page 13 of 27 

Attachment A to RFP 
Draft Agreement for Professional Services 

For an Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies Plan 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this _____ day of , 2020 by 
and between the Tuolumne County Transportation Council (“TCTC”), a California joint powers authority and 

, a California based company or a (identify state) based company or 
corporation licensed to do business in the State of California (“Consultant”). 

1. Agreement Documents

1.01 The total agreement between the parties consists of this Agreement and the following additional
documents, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference: 

A. Request for Proposal, issued April 1 2021, including Exhibits and Addenda, if any.

B. Consultant’s Proposal inclusive of Cost, as accepted by the TCTC, attached hereto as Exhibit B.

In the event of a conflict or ambiguity arising between such documents or any term therein, the 
document issued or executed later in time shall prevail over the document issued or executed 
earlier in time.  Notwithstanding the above, in the event of a conflict or ambiguity between the 
Consultant Proposal and any other Agreement Document, the other Agreement Document will 
control. 

2. Recitals

2.01 The TCTC desires professional engineering, travel demand modeling, and transportation planning 
consulting services for various projects managed by the TCTC (such services are hereinafter 
referred to as the “Project”) and, 

2.02 The TCTC has determined the Project involves the performance of specialized professional and 
technical services; and, 

2.03 Consultant has responded to the TCTC’s Request for Proposal soliciting professional engineering 
and transportation planning consulting services; and, 

2.04 Consultant hereby represents that it is in the business of, and fully qualified in the field of 
professional engineering and transportation planning consulting services, and is fully willing and 
able to perform the work orders described in the RFQ, of the Agreement, and with the level of 
service and operating quality specified herein.  TCTC awarded this Agreement in reliance on such 

33



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 14 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

representations, and on Consultant’s particular skills, experience and abilities as represented by 
Consultant in their Statement of Qualifications; and,  

 
2.05 TCTC and Consultant intend to enter into an agreement for the furnishing of certain articles and 

services for the consideration hereinafter set forth. 
 
The TCTC and Consultant, for the consideration hereinafter described, mutually agree as follows: 
 
3. Project Description:  This is a non-exclusive Master Agreement setting forth the terms under which 

Consultant will provide engineering and transportation planning consulting services. Specific project 
descriptions will be contained in Work Orders prepared pursuant to Section 3.01. 

 
 3.01 The scope of work will be set forth in Work Orders that will be approved by the parties from time to 

time.  Work Orders must be approved in writing by the Executive Director of the TCTC and an 
authorized representative of Consultant. 

 
4. Effective Date/Term:  This Agreement shall be effective from the date of execution and shall expire three 

(3) years after the date of execution or the completion of the scope of work issued pursuant to Section 
3.01 of this Agreement, whichever is later, unless this Agreement is extended by a written amendment 
pursuant to Section 4.01. 

 
4.01 TCTC or the Consultant at any time during the third year of this Agreement may request in writing 

an extension of the Agreement term for additional periods of up to two years.  Upon receiving such 
a request, and provided the Consultant is not in default, the TCTC will consider extending the 
Agreement term for the additional years. 

 
5. Commencement/Completion of Work:  The Consultant agrees to commence work upon execution of this 

Agreement and receipt of a written notice to proceed from the TCTC Executive Director and perform and 
complete the project in compliance with the Scope of Work and Project Schedule in Exhibit B. 

 
6. Suspension, Delay or Interruption of Work:  The TCTC may suspend, delay or interrupt the services of the 

Consultant for the convenience of the TCTC.  In the event of force majeure or such suspension, delay or 
interruption, an equitable adjustment in the Project's schedule, commitment and cost of Consultant's 
personnel and subcontractor, and Consultant's compensation will be made. 

 
7. Additional Services:  For additional services not outlined in Section 3 above, a separate scope of work 

describing the scope, schedule, fee and work products will be negotiated by the TCTC and the Consultant 
and approved as written work orders under this Agreement prior to any additional work effort being 
commenced upon. 

 
8. Professional Standards:  Consultant warrants and guarantees that the work provided under this 

Agreement shall be performed and completed in a professional manner.  All services shall be performed in 

34



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 15 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

the manner and according to the professional standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Consultant and any subcontractor are engaged. 

 
9. Performance:  Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 

Agreement as may be reasonably necessary for the satisfactory accomplishment of the Consultant’s 
obligations under this Agreement.  Performance of services shall comply with the schedule set forth in the 
Work Orders.  A time extension may be granted in the event that acts or omissions by the TCTC cause 
delay.  Neither party shall be considered in default of this Agreement to the extent performance is 
prevented or delayed by any cause, present or future, which is beyond the reasonable control of the party. 

 
10. Work Standard:  The TCTC has relied upon the professional training and ability of the Consultant to 

perform the services hereunder as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  The Consultant 
shall, therefore, provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all services under 
this Agreement.  All work performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall be in accordance with 
applicable legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in the Consultant’s field of expertise.  The Consultant shall be responsible for 
ensuring any approved subcontractor adheres to this same work standard. 

 
11. Personnel:  Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this 

Agreement.  Consultant shall provide all staff necessary to completion of services under this Agreement.  
The Consultant’s Project Team identified in their Statement of Qualifications shall be the Project Team for 
the duration of the Agreement unless TCTC agrees to accept replacement personnel.  In the event that the 
TCTC, at its sole discretion, at any time during the term of this Agreement, desires the removal of any 
person or persons assigned by Consultant to perform services pursuant to this Agreement because of their 
incompetence, Consultant shall remove any such person(s) immediately upon receiving notice from the 
TCTC of the desire of the TCTC for the removal of such person(s). 

 
12. Independent Contractor:  In providing the services as set forth in the Agreement Documents, Consultant 

shall act as an independent contractor and not as an employee of the TCTC.  In accordance with that 
relationship, Consultant shall assume all responsibility for its employees for Federal and State income tax 
withholding, FICA, SDI and any other deductions from income that Consultant is properly required to make 
as an independent contractor.  

 
13. Administration of Agreement:  Consultant’s compliance with this Agreement shall be supervised and 

administered by the TCTC through the office of the Executive Director.  This paragraph shall not relieve 
Consultant of any obligation or liability undertaken by virtue of this Agreement. 

 
14. Written Notification:  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication that either party 

desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent 
prepaid, first class United States mail.  Any such notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 
communication shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth herein below.  Either party 
may change its address by notifying the other party of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed 

35



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies         Page 16 of 27 

communicated within 72 hours from the time of depositing in the United States mail box if mailed as 
provided in this section. 

If to TCTC:  If to Consultant: 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council (Insert Name/Contact information) 
Darin Grossi, Executive Director 
2 South Green Street,  
Sonora, CA 95370 
dgrossi@co.tuolumne.ca.us 

15. Consents and Agreements:  Any and all consents and agreements provided for or permitted by this
Agreement shall be in writing, and a signed copy thereof shall be filed and kept with the books of this
Agreement.

16. Signature Authority
16.01 The Executive Director or his designee shall have authority on behalf of the TCTC to sign Agreement

amendments and other documents related to this Agreement. 

16.02 Consultant certifies that the following person(s) have authority to sign Agreement amendments 
and other documents related to this Agreement on behalf of Consultant.  Written certification of 
the signatory authority of the following persons shall be provided by the Consultant to the TCTC 
prior to execution of this Agreement. 

Name Title 

17. Insurance Requirements:  Consultant and/or any subcontractor shall provide a Certificate of Insurance as
proof of a policy of insurance satisfactory to the TCTC evidencing that Consultant and/or subcontractor
maintains insurance that meets the requirements included in Exhibit A, “Standard Insurance
Requirements,” of this Agreement.

18. Workers Compensation
18.01 Consultant shall comply with the provisions of the Worker’s Compensation and Insurance Law of

the State of California. 

18.02 The TCTC shall not be responsible for providing Workers’ Compensation insurance or any other 
protective insurance coverage for the Consultant that is based upon the relationship of employer 
and employee. 

19. Method of Payment:  The TCTC will pay the consultant (s) on a percent of task complete basis at the rates
set forth in the agreement(s), subject to any limitations set forth in a specific Work Order. Progress
payments will be made no more frequently than at monthly intervals. Payment will be made only on

36

mailto:dgrossi@co.tuolumne.ca.us


Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 17 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

submitted claims describing work completed prior to the close of the billing period and approved by the 
Executive Director. Progress payments will be limited to the budget for the task completed. Payment for 
work completed can be expected within 30 days of invoice receipt and verification of work performed.  A 
ten percent retention on task payment will be withheld until project completion.  
 

20. Reporting Requirements:  The Consultant will provide to the TCTC a monthly written progress report 
detailing status of the work schedule and outputs, the percentage of work completed by task and any 
other relevant factors to completion of all work in a timely manner.  The Consultant will notify the TCTC of 
any potential or existing problem areas as soon as possible. 
 

21. Maintenance of Records/Audit Rights:  Consultant shall maintain books, records, documents and other 
evidence directly pertinent to work under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and practices.  Consultant shall also maintain for a period of at least three (3) years 
from the expiration date of this Agreement the financial information and data used by Consultant to 
determine charges and costs related to work performed under this Agreement.  The TCTC, and any Federal 
or State authorized representatives, shall have the right to inspect and audit Consultant’s accounting 
books, records and documents during normal business hours.  Such records shall be turned over to the 
TCTC upon request. 
 

22. Work Product Property of the TCTC:  All plans, specifications, reports, computer files and other work 
products prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall become the property of the TCTC.  The 
TCTC’s use of documents produced under this Agreement and/or supporting information or calculations 
other than as intended hereunder shall be at the TCTC’s sole risk. 
 

23. Release of Documents and Information:  Services provided within the scope of this Agreement are for the 
exclusive use of the TCTC.  The TCTC and Consultant agree that all data, plans, specifications, reports, 
computer files and other work products will not be released to third parties by Consultant without the 
prior written consent of the TCTC. 
 

24. Covenant Against Contingent Fees:  The Consultant warrants that he/she has not employed or retained 
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee or subcontractor working for the Consultant, as 
provided for in the Consultant’s Statement of Qualifications (as accepted by TCTC), to solicit or secure this 
Agreement, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person other than a bona fide 
employee, a fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or any other consideration, contingent upon, 
resulting from the award or making this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the TCTC 
shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or, in its discretion, to deduct from the 
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 

 
25. Covenant Against Gratuities:  Consultant covenants that it has not offered or given gratuities in the form 

of entertainment, gifts or otherwise to any member, officer or employee of the TCTC with a view toward 
securing favorable treatment in the award, modification or performance evaluation of this Agreement.  For 

37



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 18 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

breach or violation of this covenant the TCTC shall have the right to cancel this Agreement without any 
liability to Consultant. 

 
26. Restrictions on Lobbying:  Consultant shall not pay any person or organization to influence or attempt to 

influence an officer or employee of any federal, state or county agency in connection with awarding this 
Agreement or any other Federal award from which funding for this Project is originally derived, consistent 
with 31 U.S.C. section 1352. 
 

27. Transfer of Agreement:  This Agreement is made in reliance by TCTC upon the qualifications and 
responsibility of Consultant. The performance by Consultant of this Agreement may not be assigned, 
sublet, transferred or in any way subcontracted, except upon the prior written approval of the TCTC. 
 

28. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment:  In all solicitations 
either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by Consultant for work to be performed under 
subcontract, including procurement of material or leases of equipment, each potential sub-Consultant or 
supplier shall be notified by Consultant of Consultant’s obligations under this Agreement relative to civil 
rights requirements.  Consultant shall provide the TCTC documentation of such notifications. 
 
Consultant agrees to refrain from awarding any third party subcontract without prior written approval by 
TCTC.  Payment for such services shall be the responsibility of the Consultant. 
 

29. Third Party Obligations:  Consultant shall be solely liable to third parties with whom it enters into 
contracts to effectuate the purpose of this Agreement.  Consultant shall pay directly such parties for all 
amounts due under said arrangement.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold the TCTC harmless 
from any and all claims and liabilities arising from any third party contracts.  Consultant shall exert its best 
efforts to prevent any loss to the TCTC from the failure of proper performance of any third party. 

 
30. Conflicts of Interest:  Consultant shall not enter into any agreement, subcontract or arrangement in 

connection with the Project or any property included or planned to be included in the Project, in which any 
member, officer or employee of Consultant or the TCTC, during the Project term and for one year 
thereafter, has any direct or indirect interest.  If any such present or former member, officer or employee 
involuntarily acquires or had acquired prior to the beginning of the Project term any such interest, and if 
such interest is immediately disclosed to Consultant and such disclosure is entered upon the minutes of 
Consultant’s written report to the TCTC of such interest, Consultant, with the prior written approval of the 
TCTC, may waive the prohibition contained in this subsection; provided that any such present member, 
officer or employee shall not participate in any action by Consultant or the TCTC relating to such 
agreement, subcontract or arrangement. 

 
31. Debarment and Suspension Certification:  Consultant agrees to refrain from entering into any sub-

agreement to this Agreement of any amount with a party included in the “U.S. General Services 
Administration’s (U.S. GSA) List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-Procurement 
Program,” implementing Executive Order Nos. 12549 and 12689, “Debarment and Suspension” and 49 CFR 

38



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies         Page 19 of 27 

Part 29.  The List also includes the names of parties debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded by 
agencies, and Consultants declared ineligible for Agreement award under statutory or regulatory authority 
other than Executive Order Nos. 12549 and 1268.  Consultant shall provide the TCTC debarment and 
suspension certification containing information about the debarment and suspension status and other 
specific information of Consultant and its “principals”, as defined in 49 CFR 29, prior to entering into any 
sub-agreement to this Agreement.   

Consultant agrees to refrain from awarding any third party sub-contract of any amount (at any tier) to a 
debarred or suspended subcontractor, and to obtain similar certification from any third party 
subcontractor (at any tier) seeking a contract exceeding $100,000. 

32. Civil Rights Requirements: During the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its
assignees and successors in interest (collectively, “Consultant”) agree as follows:

A. Compliance with Regulations:  The Consultant shall comply with regulations relative to Title VI
(nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation – Title 49 Code
of Federal Regulations Part 21 – Effectuation of Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act) (“Title VI” or
“Regulations”).  Title VI provides that the recipients of Federal assistance will implement and maintain a
policy of nondiscrimination in which no person in the State of California shall, on the basis of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, age or disability, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of
or subjected to discrimination under any program or activity by the recipients of Federal assistance or
their assignees and successors in interest.

B. Nondiscrimination:  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the Agreement
term shall act in accordance with Title VI.  Specifically, the Consultant shall not discriminate on the
basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age or disability in the selection and retention of
subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  The Consultant shall not
participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the U.S.
DOT’s regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers a program whose goal
is employment.

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation by the Consultant for work to be performed
under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential
subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s obligations under this
Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color or national
origin.  Consultant shall provide the TCTC documentation of such notifications.

D. Information and Reports:  The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required by the
Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined the TCTC, State or
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or

39



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 20 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

directives.  Where any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another 
who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall so certify to the TCTC, State or FTA, 
as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
E. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the 

nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the TCTC and/or State shall impose such 
Agreement sanctions as they or the FTA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not 
limited to: 

1) Withholding of payments due to the Consultant under this Agreement until the Consultant 
complies, and/or 

 
2) Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part. 

 
 F. Incorporation of Provisions:  The Consultant shall include the provisions of these paragraphs (A) 

through (F) in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless 
exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto.  The Consultant will take such action 
with respect to any subcontractor or procurement as the TCTC, State or the FTA may direct as a means 
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that in the event 
a Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a 
result of such direction, the Consultant may request the TCTC and/or State to enter into such litigation 
to protect the interest of the TCTC and/or State, and, in addition, the Consultant may request the United 
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
33. Health, Safety, Fire and Environmental Protection: The Consultant and any subcontractor or agent shall 

comply with Federal, State and local requirements pertaining to safety, health, fire and environmental 
protection. 
 
The Consultant shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Occupational Safety and Health 
Act of 1973, including any amendments thereto, and the rules, standards, orders and regulations 
prescribed by the Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board and the Division of Industrial Safety in 
the California Department of Industrial Relations.  Consultant shall further comply with all other applicable 
safety laws, ordinances and regulations. 
 
In the event standards conflict, the standard providing the highest degree of protection and not in 
violation of any other applicable standard or law shall prevail. 

 
34. Federal, State and Local Laws:  Consultant warrants and covenants that it shall fully and completely 

comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and all lawful orders, rules and 
regulations issued by any authority with jurisdiction in all aspects of its performance of this Agreement. 

 
35. Governing Law:  The laws of the State of California shall govern the rights, obligations, duties and liabilities 

of the parties to this Agreement and shall also govern the interpretation of this Agreement. 

40



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 21 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

 
 
36. Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor does hereby assume liability for, and agrees 

to defend, indemnify, protect, save and keep harmless the TCTC and its elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers and its successors and assigns (collectively, TCTC) from and 
against any and all liabilities, obligations damages, penalties, fines,  actions, and expenses and 
disbursements (including legal fees and expenses) of any kind and nature imposed, asserted against, 
incurred or suffered by the TCTC by reason of damage, loss or injury (including death) of any kind or nature 
whatsoever to persons or property caused by or in any way relating to or arising out of: 
 
A. Any negligent or intentional act or action, or any neglect, omission or failure to act when under a duty 

to act on the part of Consultant or any of its officers, agents, servants, employees, subcontractors or 
subcontractors of any tier in its or their performance hereunder, except to the extent caused by the 
negligence or willful wrongful act of the TCTC; and, 

 
B. any claim of patent or copyright infringement or publication of defamatory material, including the 

TCTC’s failure to request removal of such material in connection with the services performed and/or 
work products provided under this Agreement by Consultant or any of its officers, agents, servants, 
employees, subcontractors or subcontractors of any tier; and, 

 
C. a release by Consultant of any of its officers, agents, servants, employees, subcontractors or 

subcontractors of any tier in its or their performance hereunder of any substance or material defined 
or designated as a hazardous or toxic substance, material or waste by any Federal, State or local law or 
environmental statute, regulation or ordinance presently in effect, or as amended or promulgated in 
the future, but only to the extent that such release is not proximately contributed to or caused by the 
TCTC. 

 
The parties shall establish procedures to notify the other party where appropriate of any claims, 
administrative actions or legal actions with respect to any of the matters described in this indemnification 
provision.  The parties shall cooperate in the defense of such actions brought by others with respect to the 
matters covered in this indemnity.  Nothing set forth in this Agreement shall establish a standard of care 
for, or create any legal rights in, any person not a party to this Agreement. 
 
If such indemnification becomes necessary, the legal Counsel for the TCTC shall have the absolute right 
and discretion to approve or disapprove of any and all counsel employed to defend the TCTC.  This 
indemnification clause shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
37. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the provisions of this 

Agreement, the TCTC shall impose such Agreement sanctions as it may determine to be appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 
 

41



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 22 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

A. Withholding of payments due to the Consultant under this Agreement until the Consultant complies to 
the TCTC’s satisfaction, and/or 

 
B. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part. 

 
38. Termination of Agreement 
 

38.01 Acts Constituting Termination:   This Agreement shall commence on the date of its execution and 
shall continue until: 

 
A. Voluntary or involuntary transfer or assignment by either party hereto without the prior written 

consent of the other party of any of the rights, titles or obligations set forth in this Agreement; 
 

B. Mutual agreement of the parties hereto to terminate this Agreement; 
 

C. Any default or breach of this Agreement by either party hereto which has not been cured within 
thirty (30) days after notice of such default by the other party, or such later time as is reasonably 
necessary if the default cannot be reasonably cured within such thirty (30) day period; 

 
D. Written notice is delivered by either party to the other party ninety (90) days prior to the 

effective date of termination; 
 

E. The TCTC may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon thirty (5) calendar days’ written 
notice to Consultant.   

 
38.02   Consultant shall be paid for all work performed through the date of termination at the rates set 

forth in the Rate Schedule in Exhibit B, and subject to the proportion of work completed and 
approved by the Executive Director. 

 
Upon termination of this Agreement, all affairs undertaken or conducted pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be wound up and debts paid. 

 
39. Breach: If Consultant materially breaches the terms of this Agreement, the TCTC shall have the following 

remedies: 
 
A. Immediately terminate the Agreement with Consultant; 
 
B. Complete the unfinished work under any Work Orders with a different consultant; 
 
C. Charge Consultant with the difference between the cost of completion of the unfinished work pursuant 

to any Work Orders and the amount that would otherwise be due Consultant, had Consultant 
completed the work; and/or 

42



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 23 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

 
D. Allow the Consultant five (5) business days to diligently complete the correction. 

 
40. Waiver:  A waiver by the TCTC of a breach or failure to perform hereunder shall not constitute a waiver of 

any subsequent breach or failure.  No failure on the part of the TCTC to exercise any right or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder. 

 
41. Disputes:  It is agreed by the parties hereto that unless otherwise expressly waived by them, any action 

brought to enforce any of the provisions hereof or for declaratory relief hereunder shall be filed and 
remain in a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Tuolumne, State of California.  The prevailing 
party shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees in any legal action to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
42. Amendments:  This Agreement may be amended or modified in any way by an instrument in writing, 

stating the amendment or modifications, signed by the parties hereto. 
 
43. Survivorship:  Any responsibility of Consultant for warranties, insurance or indemnity with respect to this 

Agreement shall not be invalidated due to the expiration, termination or cancellation of this Agreement. 
 
44. Severability:  If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in effect. 
 
45. Successors and Assigns:  This Agreement is binding upon the TCTC and the Consultant and their 

successors.  Except as otherwise provided herein, neither the TCTC nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet 
or transfer its respective interest in this Agreement or any part thereof without the prior written consent 
of the other. 

 
46. Succession:  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of heirs, executors, 

administrators and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
47. Third Party Beneficiary:  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, nor shall anything in this Agreement be 

construed to, benefit any third party. 
 
48. Ambiguities:  The parties have each carefully reviewed this Agreement and have agreed to each term of 

this Agreement.  Both parties have had the opportunity to engage counsel and negotiated the term of the 
Agreement.  No ambiguity shall be presumed to be construed against either party. 

 
49. Integration:  The Agreement Documents embody the entire agreement of the parties in relation to the 

scope of services herein described, and no other understanding whether verbal, written or otherwise 
exists between the parties. 

 

43



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies         Page 24 of 27 

50. Relationship Between the Parties:  Nothing in these Agreement Documents is intended to create, and
nothing herein shall be considered as creating, any partnership, joint venture or agency relationship
between the TCTC and Consultant.

51. Modification:  No waiver, alteration, modification or termination of this Agreement shall be valid unless
made in writing and signed by the authorized parties hereof.

52. Headings and Subtitles:  Headings and subtitles to the Sections of this Agreement have been used for
convenience only and do not constitute matter to be considered as interpreting this Agreement.

53. Sole and Only Agreement:  This instrument contains the sole and only agreement of the parties and
correctly sets forth the rights, duties and obligations of each party to the other as of this date.  Any prior
agreements, policies, negotiations and/or representations are expressly set forth in this Agreement.

54. Acceptance of Agreement:  The undersigned, having read the foregoing, accept and agree to the terms set
forth therein.  No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in
writing and signed by the administrators for the parties hereto and no oral understanding or agreement
not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties thereto.

44



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies         Page 25 of 27 

In witness hereof, the parties have caused their authorized representatives to execute this Agreement on the 
 day of       , 2016. 

For the Consultant: 

Legal Name of Firm Signature 

Street Address Name (typed) 

City, State, Zip Code Title 

For the TCTC: 
Tuolumne County Transportation Council 

Approval Recommended: 

Chair of the TCTC 
Executive Director 

Date:    

Approved as to Legal Form: 
TCTC Legal Counsel 

By:  

Date:  

45



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies         Page 26 of 27 

Exhibit A 
Standard Insurance Requirements 

Consultant at its own expense, shall procure, and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, the following 
insurance policies and endorsements with insurers licensed in the State of California possessing a Best’s rating 
of no less than an A:VII. 

A. Workers' Compensation Coverage  - Worker’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for employees in accordance with the laws of the State of California (including
requiring any authorized subcontractor to obtain such insurance for its employees).

B. General Liability Coverage - Commercial general liability insurance with a minimum liability limit
per occurrence of one million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000) for property damage. If a commercial general liability insurance form or
other form with general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit
shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Coverage shall be included for premises,
operations and broad form contractual.

C. Automobile Liability Coverage - Automobile liability insurance with a minimum liability limit per
occurrence of one million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000) for property damage, and including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles.

D. Professional Liability Coverage  -   Professional errors and omissions liability for protection
against claims alleging negligent acts, errors or omissions which may arise from Consultant’s
operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Consultant or by its
employees, subcontractors, or sub-consultants.  The amount of this insurance shall not be less
than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per claim with an aggregate limit of two million dollars
($2,000,000).

E. Policy Endorsements: Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be
endorsed with the following specific provisions:

1) The TCTC, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds (“TCTC additional insureds”).

2) This policy shall be considered, and include a provision it is, primary as respects the
TCTC additional insureds, and shall not include any special limitations to coverage
provided to the TCTC additional insureds.  Any insurance maintained by the TCTC,
including any self-insured retention the TCTC may have; shall be considered excess
insurance only and shall not contribute with it.

46



Tuolumne County Transportation Council 
Professional Engineering & Transportation Planning Consulting Services 

 

 
Request for Proposals- Evacuation Routes and Communication Strategies                                                                           Page 27 of 27 
                                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 

 
3) This insurance shall act for each insured and additional insured as though a separate 

policy had been written for each, except with respect to the limits of liability of the 
insuring company. 

4) The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against the TCTC additional insureds. 

5) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the TCTC additional insureds. 

6) The insurance policy and endorsements shall not be suspended, voided, canceled or 
reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days’ written notice has been 
given to the Executive Director by registered mail, return receipt requested, at 2 South 
Green Street, Sonora, CA, 95370. 

 
F. Self-Insured Retentions: Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 

Executive Director.  At the TCTC’s option, Consultant shall demonstrate financial capability for 
payment of such self-insured retentions. 

 
G. Evidence of Insurance: Consultant shall provide policies and certificates of insurance with 

original endorsements or other evidence of insurance coverage as required by the Executive 
Director.  Required evidence of insurance shall be filed with the Executive Director on or before 
commencement of performance of this Agreement. Current evidence of insurance shall be kept 
on file with the Executive Director at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

 
H. Unsatisfactory Policies: If at any time any of the policies or endorsements be unsatisfactory as 

to form or substance, of if an issuing company shall be unsatisfactory, to the Executive Director, 
a new policy or endorsement shall be promptly obtained and evidence submitted to the 
Executive Director for approval. 

 
I. Failure to Comply: Upon failure to comply with any of these insurance requirements, this 

Agreement may be forthwith declared suspended or terminated.  Failure to obtain and/or 
maintain any required insurance shall not relieve any liability under this Agreement, nor shall 
the insurance requirements be construed to conflict with or otherwise limit the indemnification 
obligations. 

 
 

47



Operations Report
 Month of Review: March 2021 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Flows 

Influent Totals From: March 2021
Total 3.89 MG 

High .18 MG 

Low .09 MG 

Average 0.13 MG 

Effluent Totals From: Plant: March 2021
Total 3.39433.9343.94 MG 

High 0.18 MG 

Low 0.09 MG 

Average 0.13 MG 

Rainfall Totals at the Sewer Treatment Plant 
 Month of  March 2021 

Year Total Rainfall-inches 

2021 3.00 (High 1.10) 

2020 6.88 (High 2.08) 

2019 8.33 (High 1.20) 

2018 16.69 (High 4.89) 

2017 4.87 (High 1.03) 

Current Season Total 20.25 

Wasting Totals
Total Inches 435 

Total Pounds 5461 

Reclamation Totals
PML 0 

Spray Fields 0 

PML Season Total 0 

Spray Fields Total 0 

Active Sewer Accounts: 1560

Information Provided by:

• Luis Melchor, Operations

Manager

• Greg Dunn, Chief Plant

Operator

• Renee Van Dyk,

Administrative Services

Technician

• Adam Ahlswede Operation

Supervisor

48



Activities at the Wastewater Treatment Plant

• Took weekly Bac-Ts and BOD of the Chlorine Contact Chamber (CCC) and sent into Aqua Lab for

testing

• Completed monthly Wastewater Report and sent to the State Water Resources Control Board

• Completed daily rounds and Lab

• Cleaned out STP OSG unit brine tank

• Fabricated and installed new polymer mixer for the screw press

• Replaced belts and aligned blower for STP

Current and Past Monthly Influent Totals 

Wastewater Collections Department

• Completed all Preventative Maintenance Check Sheets (PMCS) at all Lift Stations (weekly)

o Added degreaser and odor control as needed

• Chemical flushed gravity sewer lines throughout the District for system maintenance

• Inspected and flushed problem manholes

• Hydro flushed multiple gravity lines throughout the District for system maintenance

49



• Completed Manhole inspections for LS 2 and 16 gravity lines, total of 158 manholes opened and 

inspected 

• Cleaned Lift Stations: 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 

• Checked for I&I during storm events 

• Cleaned Twin Pines easement 

• Cleaned LS 15 easement of brush 

• Performed sewer tie-in on Otter Ct 

• Cleaned check valves at L 10 

 

Treated Water Department 

• Submitted monthly Water Treatment Report to State Water Resources Control Board 

• Submitted monthly Conservation Report to State Water Boards 

• Performed weekly checks and calibrations on all analyzers at 2G, BC, and AWS 

• Performed monthly UV calibrations at 2G and BC 

• Took weekly Treatment Plant samples and sent into Aqua Lab 

• Took weekly distribution samples and sent into Aqua Lab 

• Replaced UV bulbs at 2G 

 

Current and Past Monthly Water Consumption 

 

 

50



Distribution Department

• Monitored/sample Distribution Tank as needed

• Read all District Water Meters

• Normal day to day: Trouble calls (low press/high press, no water, shut off for repairs etc.)

• Completed weekly checks on Tank 4, Highlands Pump stations (Building, Pneumatic Tank, Pumps

and MCC Cabinet)

• Responded and marked multiple USA throughout the District

• Cleaned around and flushed hydrants

• Cleaned Tank 1 easement

• Repaired water leak at Ballfield

• Replaced blowoff valve at Lake Lodge due to leak

Meter Related Services Total
Check/repair meter 0 

Install water meter 0 

Monthly Meter Restrictions 0 

Meter change outs 1 

Read tenant out 2 

Re-Read 25 

Turn off meter 2 

Turn on meter 1 

Test meter 0 

Total Distribution Issues 31

Active Water Accounts:3256

Billed Consumption 2021 Gallons
5,592,060 

Billed Consumption 2020 Gallons
5,003,217 

51



Construction and Maintenance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Maintenance  

• General yard maintenance around the District amenities (mow, weed eat, trash, debris 

removal, limb trees ETC) 

• Cleaned around dumpster area and hauled cardboard to Moore Brothers  

• Continuous Corp yard cleanup  

• Fabricated new hip wader/boot dryer  

• Cleaned ballfield restrooms and made repairs 

• Serviced and cleaned Fire house standby generator 

• Removed old generator and concrete pad at Tank 2 

• Serviced Lift Station 1, 2 and 9 standby generators  

• Degreased and pressure washed Lift Station 3, 11 and 13 standby generators  

• Replaced tires on meter truck 40606 

• Replaced exhaust system on truck 50807 

• Serviced transmission, adjusted clutch, and degreased chassis on truck 68522 

• Replaced spark plugs and wires on truck 40808 

• Replaced parking brake cable and handle on truck 40403 

• Repaired broken frame on equipment trailer 10520 

• Replaced front brakes on engine 781 

 

 

Projects/Contract Work 

• Cartegraph Development 

• Industrial Electrical 

o Began the installation of Tank 4 Generator 

Description Water Sewer 

Main line leaks 0 0 

Main line break 1 0 

Service leaks 0 0 

Service breaks 0 0 

Fire Hydrant replaced/repaired 0 0 

Totals Per Service 1 0 

52



• GIS of PRV, altitude and surge valves

• Moyle construction

o Beck Road project

 Beck Road High pressure and low-pressure 

line repair. 

53



After Hour Calls 

• Staff had 4 after hour calls:  4 Water; 0 Sewer all resolved  

 

Workplace Safety and Training 

 

Weekly Safety Meetings and Training 

• Daily Tailgate Meetings  

• Weekly Safety Meetings  

• Weekly Security Checks 

• Weekly Vehicle Inspection  

• SDRMA Safety Courses 

• On-Call training for newer employees 

• Trackstar Training for Management Team 

• Commercial Driver’s License  

o Behind the wheel testing 

• Backhoe Training 

Cla-Val training  

54



1 
Minutes 03 09 2021 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA 
March 9, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 

The Board of Directors of Groveland Community Services District met via zoom in regular 
session on the above mentioned date with Directors Janice Kwiatkowski, President, Nancy 
Mora, Vice President, Robert Swan, John Armstrong and Spencer Edwards being present. 
Also present was Administrative Services Manager Jennifer Flores, Board Secretary Rachel 
Pearlman, Operations Manager Luis Melchor, and General Manager Pete Kampa. 

Call to Order 
Director Kwiatkowski called the meeting to order at 10:01am. 

Approve Order of Agenda 

Motion 
Director Edwards moved, seconded by Director Armstrong and the motion passed 
unanimously by roll call to approve the order of the agenda. 

Public Comment 
A member of the public expressed his gratitude to the District for entering into the Maintenance 
Service Agreement with him and his partner for Leon Rose Ballfield.  

Information Items 
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. 
No action will be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion 
and action on a future agenda. Public comments will be taken after each report is provided. 

A. Staff Reports
A. Fire Department Report
B. General Manager’s Report
C. Operations Manager’s Report
D. Administrative Services Manager’s Report

Consent Calendar 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be 
set aside for separate discussion. 

A. Approve Minutes from the February 9, 2021 Regular Meeting
B. Accept February 2021 Payables
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Plan Check and Inspection Agreement with

Tuolumne County for the Groveland Community Resilience Center
D. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions Except by Title

Motion 
Director Swan moved, seconded by Director Edwards and the motion passed unanimously by 
roll call to approve the consent calendar. 

55



2 
Minutes 03 09 2021 

Old Business 
(Items tabled or carried forward from a previous meeting to be considered on this agenda. The Board of Directors 
intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on 
each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action). 

A. Discussion and Board Direction on Groveland CSD Fire Department Operational and
Financial Matters Including Increased Staffing Levels, Expanded Facilities and
Equipment, as Well as Funding Proposed to be Provided Through the Tuolumne County
Fire Authority

Motion 
No action taken. 

Discussion and Action Items 
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public 
comment is allowed on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of 
each Board action. 

A. Consideration and Board Direction Regarding the District’s Position on Requiring
Annexation of the Long Gulch Development Project and Related Connection to the District
Water and/or Sewer Systems

Motion 
Director Swan moved, seconded by Director Mora and the motion passed unanimously by roll 
call to support the General Manger’s position regarding the annexation of the Long Gulch 
Development Project. 

B. Consideration of Authorizing the General Manager to Negotiate an Agreement for the
Update of the District Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP/Safety Program) Not to
Exceed the Amount Approved in the FY 2020-2021 Budget

Motion 
Director Mora moved, seconded by Director Kwiatkowski and the motion passed unanimously by 
roll call to authorize the General Manager to negotiate an agreement with a qualified consultant 
for the update of the District Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP/Safety Program) not to 
exceed the amount approved in the FY 2020-2021 budget. 

C. Consideration and Board Direction Regarding Preparation of a Letter Regarding Concerns
with the Reliability of Services Provided by AT&T During Power Outages and Emergencies

The Board directed staff to compose a letter to AT&T regarding concerns with the reliability of 
services provided by AT&T during power outages and emergencies. 

D. Board Direction Regarding the District Participation in Emergency Siren Systems Providing
Evacuation Notifications

Motion 
Director Kwiatkowski moved, seconded by Director Mora and the motion passed unanimously 
by roll call to support the concept of the applicability, functionality and logistics related to the 
potential installation of emergency warning sirens within the District’ boundaries.  

56



 

3 
Minutes 03 09 2021 

E. Board Direction Regarding Interest in Advanced Customer Notification Systems that Include 
the Ability to Receive Text and Email Messages  

 
The Board directed staff to continue to look for solutions that will enhance communications.  
 
 
 
 
Closed Session (Public may comment on closed session item prior to Board convening into closed session)  

A. PUBLIC Employee Performance Evaluation Pursuant to Govt. Code Sec. 54957 
  Title: General Manager 
 

The Board convened into closed session at 1:10pm. 
 

The Board reconvened into open session at 1:27pm.  
 

B. Announcement of Reportable Action taken in Closed Session 
 

No reportable action was taken.  

Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 1:28pm. 

 
 
                                                                                                APPROVED:  
 
                                                                                             ________________________ 
                                                                                             Janice Kwiatkowski, President 
                                
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary  

57



1 
Minutes 03 30 2021 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA 
March 30, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 

The Board of Directors of Groveland Community Services District met via zoom in special 
session on the above mentioned date with Directors Janice Kwiatkowski, President, Nancy 
Mora, Vice President, Robert Swan, John Armstrong and Spencer Edwards being present. 
Also present was Board Secretary Rachel Pearlman, and General Manager Pete Kampa. 

Call to Order 
Director Kwiatkowski called the meeting to order at 10:10am. 

Closed Session (Public may comment on closed session item prior to Board convening into closed session)

A. PUBLIC Employee Performance Evaluation Pursuant to Govt. Code Sec. 54957
Title: General Manager

The Board convened into closed session at 10:12am.  

The Board reconvened into open session at 11:00am. 

B. Announcement of Reportable Action taken in Closed Session

No reportable action was taken. 

Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 11:00am. 

 APPROVED: 

  ________________________ 
  Janice Kwiatkowski, President 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary  

58



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

CHECK LISTING  

March 2021 
Fiscal Year 20/21 

Board Approval Date ___ 

59



Accounts Payable
Checks

User: dpercoco

Printed: 4/6/2021 8:58:33 AM

Check N Vendor N Vendor Name Check Dat Committe Description Amount

20074 am01 AM Consulting Engineers, Inc. 3/26/2021 True $117,958.51

20075 AQU01 Aqua Labs 3/26/2021 True $2,670.00

20076 aqu5 Aqua Sierra Controls Inc. 3/26/2021 True $3,944.30

20077 ATT02 AT&T 3/26/2021 True $363.41

20078 ATT03 AT&T 3/26/2021 True $413.06

20079 Des01 Deshaies, Al 3/26/2021 True $316.38

20080 EDIS01 E.D.I.S. 3/26/2021 True $2,105.98

20081 Far02 Farr Construction 3/26/2021 True $277,369.41

20082 Fas02 Fastenal 3/26/2021 True $3,257.79

20083 Ferg01 Ferguson Enterprises Inc.  #1423 3/26/2021 True $1,926.36

20084 FOO01 Foothill-Sierra Pest Control 3/26/2021 True $247.00

20085 GRA04 Grainger 3/26/2021 True $607.87

20086 NBS01 NBS Government Finance Group 3/26/2021 True $7,500.00

20087 neu01 Neumiller & Beardslee 3/26/2021 True $1,449.00

20088 Pac06 PACE Supply Corp 3/26/2021 True $5,116.19

20089 pre02 Presidio Systems, Inc 3/26/2021 True $2,600.00

20090 Pri04 Principal Life Insurance Company 3/26/2021 True $3,807.83

20091 Ron01 Roni Lynn 3/26/2021 True $2,600.00

20092 SFPUC San Francisco Public Utilties Commission 3/26/2021 True $8,356.46

20093 son12 Sonora Ford 3/26/2021 True $76.25

20094 Sta15 Staples Credit Plan 3/26/2021 True $188.58

20095 TIR01 The Tire Shop 3/26/2021 True $205.92

20096 Ver03 Verizon Wireless          7706 3/26/2021 True $138.19

20097 Wells Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 3/26/2021 True $366.28

20098 UB*02817 , Cuellar Family Trust 3/26/2021 True $164.95

20099 UB*02814 Aluia, Elizabeth 3/26/2021 True $109.97

20100 UB*02805 Betts, Thomas 3/26/2021 True $83.84

20102 UB*02808 Dutton, Donald 3/26/2021 True $140.60

20103 UB*02803 Gomez, Daniel & Robyn 3/26/2021 True $43.63

20104 UB*02806 Gunter, Brandon 3/26/2021 True $40.09

20105 UB*02813 Gunter, Delaney 3/26/2021 True $156.38

20106 UB*02812 Haavisto, Gary 3/26/2021 True $99.52

20107 UB*02810 Hessler, Darlene 3/26/2021 True

Engineering for B/C Clearwell & Downtown Grov/BOF
Lab Test
Semi Annual Instrument Service & Calibrations for flow meters 
Monthly Cal Net phone service

Monthly Internet Uverse

Reimbursement for Thorogood Steel Toe Logger Work Boots 
Operations Supplemental Health Insurance

2nd Progress billing for Big Creek/2G Clearwell Project 
Misc. Maintenance Supplies
Parts for WTP plumbing repairs

Pest Control

Hip Wader Dryer

Professional Services thru 2/28/21 for Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Legal Services

B/C Surge Valve Replacement 
Hydro Vac Out for Lift Stations 5,6,7,8

Monthly Dental, Vision, Life & LTD Insurance

Social Media Management

Monthly Water Purchase

Repair Truck 40808 Misfire Condition

Office Supplies
Hip Boot Drier

Monthly Auto Dialers

Kyocera Copier Lease
Refund Check 013250-006, 19018  JIMMIEBELL 7/168 
Refund Check 008886-000, 20887  MCKINLEY 10/2 Mrg 
Refund Check 013985-000, 20725  POINT VIEW  4/210 
Refund Check 015338-000, 13400  Clements Rd 12/167 Refund 

Check 012985-000, 11976  MYER CT 13/70

Refund Check 016971-000, 12850  Cresthaven 3/438

Refund Check 016047-000, 12850  Cresthaven 3/438

Refund Check 016387-000, 12935  WELLS FARGO 2/445 
Refund Check 012563-000, 20924  Hemlock Street $134.61

Accounts Payable - Checks (4/6/2021) Page 1 of 4

60



Check N Vendor N Vendor Name Check Dat Committe Description Amount

20108 UB*02811 Howe, John & Jackie 3/26/2021 True $6.00

20109 UB*02816 Kostukovsky, Oleg & Svetlana 3/26/2021 True $68.47

20110 UB*02815 Lund, Christy 3/26/2021 True $21.73

20111 UB*02807 Schall Trustee, Michael  J. Schall Trustee 3/26/2021 True $4.00

20112 UB*02809 Stith, Trustee Curtis & Kathleen 3/26/2021 True $181.50

21101 UB*02804 Campbell, Alan 3/26/2021 True $38.01

115807 OE3 Operating Engineers Local #3 3/18/2021 True $353.99

902267 CAL09 CalPers 457 Plan Administrator 3/18/2021 True $1,000.00

902268 DCSS Dept of Child Support Services 3/18/2021 True $205.03

902269 EDD01 EDD - Electronic 3/18/2021 True $2,499.51

902270 FedEFTPS Federal EFTPS 3/18/2021 True $12,960.01

902271 Orion Orion Portfolio Solutions 3/18/2021 True $1,305.00

902272 PER01 Pers - Electronic 3/18/2021 True $8,333.88

20008 BLU01 Anthem Blue Cross 3/11/2021 True $19,653.69

20009 AQU01 Aqua Labs 3/11/2021 True $3,885.00

20010 aqu5 Aqua Sierra Controls Inc. 3/11/2021 True $7,610.67

20011 Atl01 Atlas Copco Compressors, LLC 3/11/2021 True $1,735.67

20012 CAR06 Carbon Copy Inc. 3/11/2021 True $49.04

20013 Cle03 CleanSmith Solutions 3/11/2021 True $1,700.00

20014 UB*02800 Cochetas, Danny 3/11/2021 True $243.74

20015 UB*02796 Collins Jr., William 3/11/2021 True $94.13

20016 Con06 Conifer Communications 3/11/2021 True $1,004.40

20017 CWEA CWEA 3/11/2021 True $192.00

20018 Datapros Dataprose LLC Attn AR 3/11/2021 True $1,875.01

20019 DIS01 Dish Network 3/11/2021 True $79.55

20020 UB*02793 Doty, Albert & MaryAnne 3/11/2021 True $206.33

20021 DRU01 Drugtech Toxicology Services, LLC 3/11/2021 True $76.00

20022 UB*02790 Fijak, John 3/11/2021 True $320.32

20023 flo01 Flores, Jennifer 3/11/2021 True $100.00

20024 FP Mail FP Mailing Solutions 3/11/2021 True $286.36

20025 GCS02 GCSD 3/11/2021 True $2,354.91

20026 GCS01 GCSD Petty Cash 3/11/2021 True $6.49

20027 GEN01 General Plumbing Supply 3/11/2021 True $813.74

20028 gilb01 Gilbert Associates, Inc. 3/11/2021 True $3,400.00

20029 H&S H & S Parts and Service 3/11/2021 True $230.01

20030 HER01 Hercules Industries Inc 3/11/2021 True $461.69

20031 Hun02 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 3/11/2021 True $3,138.10

20032 JSW02 J.S. West Propane Gas 3/11/2021 True $3,840.74

20033 UB*02794 Jessup, James 3/11/2021 True $397.27

20034 Kam02 Kampa, Peter 3/11/2021 True $100.00

20035 Kens Ken's Asphalt 3/11/2021 True $14,000.00

20036 CUR01 L. N. Curtis & Sons 3/11/2021 True $1,130.06

20037 UB*02802 Lahip, Juanita 3/11/2021 True

Refund Check 013533-000, 20324  PINE MT DR 3/191 
Refund Check 012640-000, 12007  BRECKENRIDGE

Refund Check 015818-000, 20742  FORESTWOOD  4/405 
Refund Check 016206-000, 20463  RCK CYN 3/226  IRRIG 
Refund Check 014260-000, 20123  PINE MT DR 13/274 
Refund Check 016861-000, 19963  PINE MT DR 13/150

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 Oper Engin Union Dues

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 CalPers Def Comp

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 Wage Garnish Child Support

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 State Income Tax

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 Medicare Employer Portion

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 Orion 457

PR Batch 00002.03.2021 2nd Tier PERS

Monthly Group Health Insurance
Lab Tests
IT Services for Maintenance & Operations

Repairs on AWS Compressor.

Monthly Copier Usage

Disinfection Services & Rcls of Nov, Dec, Jan & Feb

Refund Check 014715-000, 12825  CRESTHAVEN 3/380 
Refund Check 016384-000, 19529  FERRETTI RD 6/205 
Internet Service

CWEA Renewal for Zachary Pacheco

Monthly UB Statement Processing

Satellite TV for FD

Refund Check 013405-001, 20533  NOB HILL CR 3/121-122 
Consortium DOT Tests

Refund Check 015693-000, 12710  MT JEFFRSN  5/100 A 
Monthly Internet Stipend

Quarterly Postage Machine Rental

GCSD Water Bills
Certified Mail

Hymax Couplers for the Water Leak on Rock Canyon Way 
CPA Services

New Air Dryer for AWS Connections.

New Locks

Fuel & Oil

Propane

Refund Check 016131-000, 19867  PINE MT DR 13/9 
Monthly Internet Stipend

Asphalt Repair Gate 1/Sean Patrick Lane

Timberline Hose Clamps per the Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant. 
Refund Check 005080-000, 12/87  Beaver Ct. 12/87 $12.00

Accounts Payable - Checks (4/6/2021) Page 2 of 4

61



Check N Vendor N Vendor Name Check Dat Committe Description Amount

20038 UB*02788 Moore, Glenda 3/11/2021 True $79.73

20039 MOO01 Moore Bros. Scavenger Co., Inc. 3/11/2021 True $637.28

20040 UB*02795 Morris, Jennifer 3/11/2021 True $74.62

20041 MOT03 Mother Lode Answering Service 3/11/2021 True $241.78

20042 MOU03 Mountain Oasis Water Systems 3/11/2021 True $131.00

20043 Oreil O'Reilly Auto Parts 3/11/2021 True $216.51

20044 Pac06 PACE Supply Corp 3/11/2021 True $5,422.13

20045 Pea01 Pearlman, Rachel 3/11/2021 True $100.00

20046 per04 Percoco, Ronald 3/11/2021 True $1,954.00

20047 PGE01 PG&E 3/11/2021 True $743.70

20048 Pin07 Pine Mountain Auto 3/11/2021 True $506.26

20049 pml01 PML Hardware & Supply Inc. 3/11/2021 True $259.15

20050 Pri04 Principal Life Insurance Company 3/11/2021 True $3,807.83

20051 RLR01 R.L. Righetti Enterprises, Inc. 3/11/2021 True $1,250.14

20052 UB*02786 Raposa, Marcus 3/11/2021 True $160.99

20053 SUE01 Ray Suess Insurance & Invst 3/11/2021 True $6,800.47

20054 UB*02792 Sapegina, Dina 3/11/2021 True $48.79

20055 UB*02791 Scramaglia, Tracy 3/11/2021 True $18.90

20056 UB*02787 Slaughter, Suzanne 3/11/2021 True $110.97

20057 UB*02751 Smith, Gary 3/11/2021 True $168.17

20058 UB*02799 Soe, Lawrence & Nona 3/11/2021 True $145.17

20059 Sol01 Solenis LLC 3/11/2021 True $1,805.30

20060 son12 Sonora Ford 3/11/2021 True $3.00

20061 UB*02789 Spears, Brian & Cheryl 3/11/2021 True $33.99

20062 TRO01 Trotter Welding & Steel Supply 3/11/2021 True $240.50

20063 TUO01 Tuo. Co. Public Power Agency 3/11/2021 True $15,106.68

20064 UMP01 UMPQUA Bank 3/11/2021 True $5,021.70

20065 UNI05 Univar Solutions 3/11/2021 True $1,334.13

20066 UB*02785 Valdez, Rio 3/11/2021 True $129.36

20067 Van01 VanDyk, Renee 3/11/2021 True $100.00

20068 Ver02 Verizon Wireless          5298 3/11/2021 True $838.26

20069 Wells Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 3/11/2021 True $359.29

20070 UB*02797 Winkenbach, John & Laura 3/11/2021 True $341.46

20071 ZEE01 Zee Medical Service Co 3/11/2021 True $172.35

20072 zer01 Zero Waste USA 3/11/2021 True $192.54

20073 UB*02798 Zoysa, Sudantha & Dumindra 3/11/2021 True $61.49

115806 OE3 Operating Engineers Local #3 3/3/2021 True $353.99

902261 CAL09 CalPers 457 Plan Administrator 3/2/2021 True $1,000.00

902262 DCSS Dept of Child Support Services 3/2/2021 True $205.03

902263 EDD01 EDD - Electronic 3/2/2021 True $2,690.62

902264 FedEFTPS Federal EFTPS 3/2/2021 True $15,463.25

902265 Orion Orion Portfolio Solutions 3/2/2021 True $1,805.00

902266 PER01 Pers - Electronic 3/2/2021 True

Refund Check 015516-000, 13092  FOX CT 7/278

30 Yd. Monthly Debris Box Rental/Garbage Services
Refund Check 015539-000, 19551  COTTONWOOD  6/12 
Monthly Answering Service
Bottled Water

Auto Parts

Beck Road Check Valve and Valve Repair

Monthly Internet Stipend

Operations/Maint Cleaning

Monthly Electric Charges

February Auto Parts

Monthly Hardware supplies

Monthly Dental, Vision, Life & LTD Insurance

Water Outlet Connection/Water Inlet Gasket for Truck 70981 
Refund Check 015941-000, 12755  JUNIPERO SER 5/831 C 
Retired Members Medical 

Refund Check 014696-000, 20264  LITTLE VLLY 13/213 
Refund Check 009761-000, 10026  Nonpareil Way 10/26 
Refund Check 007376-000, 13092  FOX CT 7/278

Refund Check 016009-000, 19112  DYER CT 5/275 Refund 

Check 015145-000, 19865  Pleasant View 1/243 Cationic 

Emulsion Polymer for WWTP Sludge Press

Bolt for Truck 50810

Refund Check 015079-000, 12725  Mueller Dr 5/268 Waste 

Water Plant Polymer Mixer Lid Fabrication

Public Power Purchase

Feb. Credit Card Purchases 
Chlorine Products for AWS and WWTP.

Refund Check 015725-000, 20850  Big Foot Circle 4/372 
Monthly Internet Stipend

Monthly Cell Phone

Monthly Lease on Admin Copier

Refund Check 015018-000, 19011  Dyer Ct

First Aid Supplies

Dog Waste Bags for Dog Park

Refund Check 015081-000, 12530  PINE BROOK  4/448 PR 

Batch 00001.03.2021 Oper Engin Union Dues

PR Batch 00001.03.2021 CalPers Def Comp

PR Batch 00001.03.2021 Wage Garnish Child Support

PR Batch 00001.03.2021 State Income Tax

PR Batch 00001.03.2021 FICA Employer Portion

PR Batch 00001.03.2021 Orion 457

PR Batch 00001.03.2021 2nd Tier PERS $7,948.08

Accounts Payable - Checks (4/6/2021) Page 3 of 4

62



Check N Vendor N Vendor Name Check Dat Committe Description Amount

20004 Yos08 Yosemite TItle Company 3/1/2021 True Condition of Title Guarantee for GCSD District Property $550.00

Accounts Payable - Checks (4/6/2021) Page 4 of 4

March Direct Deposit Payroll

Total Accounts Payable

$74,167.13

$693,333.15

63



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: April 13, 2021 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 5D. Approval of Resolution 10-2021 Commending Battalion 
Chief Jude Acosta for his Efforts and Accomplishments While Serving the 
Groveland Fire Department General Manager’s Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I move to approve Resolution 10-2021 commending Battalion Chief Jude Acosta for his efforts 
and accomplishments while serving the Groveland Fire Department. 

BACKGROUND: 
Cal Fire Battalion Chief Acosta has been with the Groveland Community Services District Fire 
Department since March 2016, Jude’s priority was to provide the highest level of service to the 
public. Chief Acosta has been offered and accepted a transfer to the Sierra Center B4407 position 
at Sierra Conservation Center overseeing the southern region inmate fire crew training program. 
The District wants to express our gratitude for Battalion Chief Acosta's leadership and service to 
the Groveland Community Services District and wish him the best in his new assignment. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 10-2021 

64



RESOLUTION 10-2021 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

COMMENDING BATTALION CHIEF JUDE ACOSTA FOR HIS EFFORTS 
AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS WHILE SERVING THE GROVELAND FIRE 

DEPARTMENT 

WHEREAS, Chief Acosta became the Battalion Chief for the CAL FIRE Groveland CSD 
Station 78 in March 2016. Jude’s priority was to provide the highest level of service to the 
public; and 

WHEREAS, he supervised the Groveland Community Services District Fire Station 
78, Green Springs, and Blanchard CAL FIRE Station. He took many strike teams 
around the state battling some of the largest wildfires in California history; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Acosta was successful in implementing new programs and 
procedures, providing leadership, supervision, direction, control, and the development 
of personnel; and 

WHEREAS, he assisted with planning and administering of budgets, wrote and 
administered grants, planned capital purchases for the State and Groveland Community 
Services District, and planned and conducted vegetation management programs to 
protect the greater Groveland area, most notably including a successful Jones Hill fuel 
break, and Crooks vegetation management-controlled burn; and 

WHEREAS, we want to express our gratitude for Battalion Chief Acosta's leadership 
and service to the Groveland Community Services District and wish him the best in his 
new assignment. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY 
extend the appreciation of this Board to Jude Acosta for the excellent public service 
provided to the community and for showing the knowledge, skills, experience, and 
drive that is the model of cultural excellence for which we strive at GCSD. 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Groveland Community Services District on April 13, 2021 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

65



ATTEST: 

Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary 

Janice Kwiatkowski, President - Board of Directors 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

I, Rachel Pearlman, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing 
Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, duly called and held on April 13, 2021. 
DATED:   

66



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: April 13, 2021  

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 6A. Discussion and Board Direction on Groveland CSD Fire 
Department Operational and Financial Matters Including Tuolumne County 
Fire Authority’s Measure V, Intended to Provide Funding for Fire and 
Emergency Response Services 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
No action required at this time.  

BACKGROUND: 
The GCSD Board of Directors has within one year of the receipt of the 2020 Fire Master Plan 
Update, has accomplished most of the recommended next steps as listed below: 

1. Review and absorb the content, findings, and recommendations of this Fire Master Plan
Update.

2. Prepare a staff report and draft resolution for consideration by the District Board of
Directors adopting the included recommended response performance goals.

3. Aggressively pursue one or more of the suggested funding strategies to ensure longterm
fiscal sustainability.

4. Provide additional daily staffing if/when funding becomes available; consider seeking a
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Staffing for Adequate Fire and
Emergency Response (SAFER) grant to provide partial reimbursement of those costs over
the first three years.

Items #1 and #2 have been completed and Item #3 is partially accomplished with the County 
picking up the cost of the Amador station in Groveland. The District was also instrumental in the 
formation of the Tuolumne County Fire Authority (TCFA) which is intended to fulfill the second 
half of Task #3 above; to submit a fire funding measure to the voters.   

TCFA has submitted the special tax funding measure to the county elections department; which 
was subsequently titled “Measure V”.  Measure V is scheduled as an all-mail ballot measure, 
meaning that there will be no formal physical polling location.  Ballots will be mailed to all 

67



 

registered voters within the TCFA starting the first week of May 2021.  Ballots must be postmarked 
no later than June 8, 2021, and there will also be ballot dropoff locations identified in the ballot 
information.  The TCFA also prepared the attached “Argument in Favor” of Measure V, which 
will be included in the mailed ballot material.   
 
If approved by the voters, Measure V will generate approximately $552,525 in revenue specifically 
to fund the Groveland Fire Department.  The District is also establishing development impact fees 
and considering formation of a Community Facilities District to help in funding the purchase and 
replacement of park and fire service capital equipment and facilities.  With voter approval of 
Measure V, the combination of these revenue sources will provide funding for fire engine and 
equipment replacement and upgrade, as well as moving the department much closer to the 
recommended increased firefighter levels with two staffed engines.   
 
Measure V, if approved will provide $3,117,975 in funding to the Tuolumne County Fire 
Department, who has expressed their interest and desire to staff a fire station in the Groveland area 
to provide primary response to areas outside the GCSD boundaries and mutual aid into GCSD.      
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

• Measure V Argument in Favor as submitted by TCFA 
• Measure V FAQ (provided with GM Report) 

 

68



Argument in Favor of Measure V: 
 
A YES vote for Measure V creates a consistent, predictable source of funding that will only be used by 
fire departments for firefighter safety, protecting lives and property, replacing aging fire engines, 
purchasing emergency response equipment such as “Jaws-of-Life”, reducing wildfire risks and improving 
emergency response capabilities.  If approved by the voters, this funding will be distributed directly to the 
Tuolumne County Fire Department, Sonora City Fire Department, Groveland Fire Department, 
Jamestown, Columbia and Tuolumne Fire Districts only, based on the number of properties served by 
each.   
 
Changes in state law over decades have reduced the amount of funding local Fire Departments like ours 
receive. Current funding for Fire Departments does not keep pace with rising costs or allow them to 
replace aging fire engines and expensive rescue equipment. Demand for state and federal grants is at an 
all-time high with departments throughout the state competing for limited funds. Almost all of Tuolumne 
County is designated a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone and now is not the time to risk reductions in 
our local fire protection services. We simply cannot afford the devastation caused by fires like other areas 
of the state.  
 
For the first time in our history, local Fire Departments have joined forces to form the Tuolumne County 
Fire Authority. The TCFA has a common vision to solidify fire and emergency response services in the 
region and give our local communities the opportunity to vote on a secure, consistent and reliable source 
of funding for your Fire Departments. Through citizens’ oversight and with annual reports, your Measure 
V tax dollars are protected, and funding can ONLY be spent for fire and emergency services. This 
specific source of fire service funding cannot be taken or diverted for any other purpose by federal, state 
or county governments.  
 
Signed, 
 
 
Ryan Campbell, Chair, Tuolumne County Fire Authority 
Nick Casci, Chief, Tuolumne County Fire Department / Groveland Fire Department / Jamestown Fire 
Protection District* 
Mark Ferreira, Chief, Columbia Fire Protection District* 
Aimee New, Chief, Sonora City Fire Department* 
Nick Ohler, Chief, Tuolumne Fire District* 
 
* title used for identification purposes only 
 
 
 

69



 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 
 
TO:  GCSD Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager  
 
DATE: April 13, 2021  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item 7A. Review of 2021/22 Budget preparation plan and 

schedule 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
No action required at this time. Board direction should be given if modifications to the budget 
development process or schedule is desired.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of this agenda item is to convey the staff recommended scope and schedule for 
development and adoption of the 2021/2022 fiscal year budget.  Staff proposes as follows: 

ITEM SCHEDULE 
Staff completion of projected FYE June 30, 2021 figures April 30, 2021 
Staff Development of proposed 2021/22 Operating Budgets May 6, 2021 
Staff development of proposed (final) 2021/22 Capital purchase and 
project budgets 

May 28, 2021 

Board review of 1st draft 2021/22 budget May 11, 2021 
Public Hearing and Board adoption of the 2021/22 budget June 8, 2021 

 
Provided for reference only, attached to this agenda item is the California Government Code 
relating to CSD Budget development.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

• CSD Budget adoption procedures from the CA Government Code 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
None 

70



BUDGET ADOPTION PROCEDURES FOR CSD 

CHAPTER 2.  FINANCE  

61110.  (a) On or before July 1 of each year or, for districts using two one-year budgets or a biennial 
budget cycle, every other year, the board of directors may adopt a preliminary budget that conforms to 
generally accepted accounting and budgeting procedures for special districts.  

(b) The board of directors may divide the preliminary budget into categories, including, but not limited 
to, the following: 

(1) Maintenance and operation. 

(2) Services and supplies. 

(3) Employee compensation. 

(4) Capital outlay. 

(5) Interest and redemption for indebtedness. 

(6) Designated reserve for capital outlay. 

(7) Designated reserve for contingencies. 

(c) On or before July 1 of each year or, for districts using two one-year budgets or a biennial budget, 
every other year, the board of directors shall publish a notice stating all of the following:  

(1) Either that it has adopted a preliminary budget or that the general manager has pre-pared a 
proposed final budget which is available for inspection at a time and place within the district specified in 
the notice.  

(2) The date, time, and place when the board of directors will meet to adopt the final budget and that 
any person may appear and be heard regarding any item in the budget or regarding the addition of 
other items.  

(d) The board of directors shall publish the notice at least two weeks before the hearing in at least one 
newspaper of general circulation in the district pursuant to Section 6061.  

(e) At the time and place specified for the hearing, any person may appear and be heard regarding any 
item in the budget or regarding the addition of other items.  The hearing on the budget may be 
continued from time to time.  

(f) On or before September 1 of each year or, for districts using two one-year budgets or a biennial 
budget, every other year, the board of directors shall adopt a final budget that conforms to generally 
accepted accounting and budgeting procedures for special districts.  The general manager shall forward 
a copy of the final budget to the auditor of each county in which the district is located. 

 

 

 

71



 

GOVERNMENT CODE - GOV 

TITLE 1. GENERAL [100 - 7914]  ( Title 1 enacted by Stats. 1943, Ch. 134. ) 

DIVISION 7. MISCELLANEOUS [6000 - 7599.2]  ( Division 7 enacted by Stats. 1943, Ch. 134. ) 

CHAPTER 1. Publications and Official Advertising [6000 - 6078]  ( Chapter 1 enacted by Stats. 1943, Ch. 
134. ) 

ARTICLE 4. Manner of Publication [6060 - 6066]  ( Article 4 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 1587. ) 

6060.  Whenever any law provides that publication of notice shall be made pursuant to a designated 
section of this article, such notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation for the period 
prescribed, the number of times, and in the manner provided in that section. As used in this article, 
“notice” includes official advertising, resolutions, orders, or other matter of any nature whatsoever that 
are required by law to be published in a newspaper of general circulation. 

(Added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 1587.) 

6061.  Publication of notice pursuant to this section shall be for one time. 

72



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: April 13, 2021  

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 7B. Appointment of an AD HOC Committee(s) for Review 
and Recommendation of the Water and Sewer Master Plans, Community 
Facilities District Financial Impact Analysis, and Development Impact Fee 
Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I move to appoint an AD HOC Committee for review and recommendation of the Water and 
Sewer Master Plans, Community Facilities District Financial Impact Analysis, and Development 
Impact Fee Report.  

BACKGROUND: 
Staff is recommending that the Board appoint Ad-Hoc Committees to become familiar with, assist 
in finalizing and presentation to the Board the Water/Sewer Master Plan, Development Impact Fee 
Study and Schedule, and Community Facilities District Financial Impact Analysis.  It is expected 
that the committee(s) will meet once or twice each over the next month or two, and will then be 
dissolved upon consideration of the respective items by the Board.   

ATTACHMENTS:  
None 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Committee members will be compensated for attendance at each committee meeting at a total cost 
of $150 per meeting ($75 per director x two directors per committee).  The total cost of the 
committee work should not exceed $900.    

73



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: April 13, 2021  

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 7C. Approval of a 2020/21 Budget Amendment for the 
Completion of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Reservoir #2 Inundation 
Study and Emergency Action Plan as Required by Mandate of the State 
Department of Water Resources 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I move to approve the 2020/21 Budget Amendment not to exceed $53,000 for the Completion 
of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Reservoir #2 Inundation Study and Emergency Action 
Plan as Required by Mandate of the State Department of Water Resources. 

BACKGROUND: 
The California Division of Safety of Dams is requiring all dam owners to provide an inundation 
study and an emergency action plan that evaluates the potential flooding caused by a dam failure. 
GCSD owns and operates Reservoir #2, a 170 ac-ft reservoir created by an earthen dam. The hazard 
potential classification for the Reservoir #2 dam is Significant. The Reservoir #2 Dam is located 
west of Pine Mountain Lake, upgradient from residential homes around Pine Mountain Lake. A 
failure of the Reservoir #2 dam would potentially cause flooding on some of the homes closer to 
the lake. AMCE will prepare an emergency action plan that complies with the requirements of 
listed in Government Code Section 8589.5 and follows the template provided by CalOES. AMCE 
will submit a draft copy of the EAP and inundation study to GCSD staff for review. After GCSD’s 
review, AMCE will finalize the EAP and inundation study and submit copies to the State. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• AMCE Inundation Study Scope of Work

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
AMCE will complete the tasks set forth herein for a not to exceed fee of $53,000. AMCE will 
invoice the District monthly for the work performed during the prior month based on the staff 
hours spent on this project. If approved, this project and amount will be added to the 2020/21 fiscal 
year wastewater budget.   

74



5150 N Sixth Street, Suite 124 
Fresno, CA 93710 

Phone 559.473.1371 
Fax 559.513.8449 

March 24, 2021 

Peter Kampa 

General Manager  

Groveland Community Services District 

P.O. Box 350 

Groveland, CA 95321 

Re: Emergency Action Plan and Inundation Study 

Dear Peter: 

We are pleased to submit this letter summarizing the scope and fee for engineering services with 

regards to the preparation of an Emergency Action Plan and Inundation Study for Reservoir #2. 

The EAP and IS are being required by the California Division of Safety of Dams in accordance 

with the Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 1, Article 6 of the California Code of Regulations.  

GCSD owns and operates Reservoir #2, a 170 ac-ft reservoir created by an earthen dam. The 

hazard potential classification for the Reservoir #2 dam is Significant. The Reservoir #2 Dam is 

located west of Pine Mountain Lake, upgradient from residential homes around Pine Mountain 

Lake. A failure of the Reservoir #2 dam would potentially cause flooding on some of the homes 

closer to the lake. The California Division of Safety of Dams is requesting all dam owners to 

provide an inundation study and an emergency action plan that evaluates the potential flooding 

caused by a dam failure.  

SCOPE OF WORK  

Based on our understanding of this project we have prepared the following scope of work: 

Task 1 – Topographic Survey 

AMCE’s subconsultant will complete a UAV LiDAR Topographic Survey utilizing a high precision 

UAV equipment with Riegl LiDAR and RGB Sensors. The topographic survey will include at a 

minimum: 

1. Field and office work to prepare a UAV LiDAR Topographic survey.

2. Identification of existing property benchmarks or establish at least two site survey

benchmarks.

3. Setting aerial targets throughout the project site as determined with Sub that aerial LiDAR

and imagery will be leveled to.

4. Ortho rectified image will be provided with a 1-inch image resolution.

5. Linework for all features will be provided such as roads, fences, structures, utilities, etc.

75



 Page 2 

Elevations shall be referenced to the local state vertical datum. Each project horizontal datum 

shall be relative to the standard horizontal datum for the state. The survey will follow State and 

County jurisdiction standards for coordinate system and datum where applicable. 

Task 2 – Inundation Study

AMCE’s will utilize the topographic survey and ground terrain models generated in Task 1 to 

create a computer model that will simulate the inundation of areas downstream from Reservoir 

#2 Dam because of a dam failure. The computer model will be done using HEC-RAS, an industry 

standard computer model that simulates flooding. 

Task 3 – Emergency Action Plan

AMCE will prepare an emergency action plan that complies with the requirements of listed in 

Government Code Section 8589.5 and follows the template provided by CalOES. AMCE will 

submit a draft copy of the EAP and inundation study to GCSD staff for review. After GCSD’s 

review, AMCE will finalize the EAP and inundation study and submit copies to the State.   

FEE

AMCE will complete the tasks set forth herein for a not to exceed fee of $53,000. AMCE will 

invoice the District monthly for the work performed during the prior month based on the staff hours 

spent on this project. A detailed budget (per task) used in the determination of this fee and is 

included in the following table: 

Task Fee ($)
Task 1 – Topographic Survey $28,000 

Task 2 – Inundation Study $15,000 

Task 3 – Emergency Action Plan $10,000 

Total Fee $53,000 

SCHEDULE

The EAP and IS are overdue. AMCE, on behalf of GCSD has requested an extension to DWR. 

The extension requested would require the submittal of the EAP and IS by August 1, 2021. We 

are committed to meet that schedule. For purposes of this proposal we anticipate completing each 

of the tasks according to the following schedule: 

Task Completion Date
Task 1 – Topographic Survey May 1, 2021 

Task 2 – Inundation Study June 15, 2021 

Task 3 – Emergency Action Plan June 30, 2021 

76



 Page 3 

We have already arranged the topographic survey and the field work will be completed in the next 

couple of weeks. Thank you once more for considering us for this project. If you have any 

questions or require any additional information, please call me at (559) 288-9172. 

Sincerely, 

Alfonso Manrique, PE 

Principal 

77



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Pete Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: April 13, 2021  

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 7D. Approval of a 2020/21 Budget Amendment Recognizing 
Grant Revenue in the Amount of $286,650 from the Office of Emergency 
Services and $300,000 in Expenses Related to the Purchase and Installation 
of Emergency Generators 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I Move to Approve a 2020/21 Budget Amendment Recognizing Grant Revenue in the Amount 
of $286,650 from the Office of Emergency Services and $300,000 in Expenses Related to the 
Purchase of Emergency Generators and including Authorization for Their Sole Source 
Purchasing. 

BACKGROUND: 
The State Office of Emergency Services issued a Request for Proposals in fall of 2020 seeking 
grant applications from special districts for the installation of measures to reduce the impacts of 
PG&E PSPS events.  

ATTACHMENTS:  
• Generator Project budget narrative

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

78



Subrecipient: Groveland CSD Subaward #: 

Budget Narrative – Cal OES 2-107 (Revised 3/2019) 

Budget Narrative 

The project’s budget will be used to furnish and install six new emergency 

generators at critical water and wastewater infrastructure sites as identified in the 

Project Narrative. Project components include the generators, sound enclosures, 

permitting, concrete pad, electrical and surface restoration. The budget will also 

cover engineering and environmental. The following provides a detailed budget: 

• Highlands Booster Pump Station Generator - $69,495

• Lift Station Generator 1 - $32,588

• Lift Station Generator 2 - $39,473

• Lift Station Generator 3 - $64,950

• Lift Station Generator 4 - $32,588

• Lift Station Generator 5 - $32,588

• Engineering and Environmental - $15,000

• Total - $286,650

These emergency generators will allow the District to provide uninterrupted water 

and wastewater services in the event of a power outage event, allowing the 

Highlands Booster Pump Station to continue to provide adequate water supply 

and pressure to the community of Groveland, reducing the likelihood of 

contamination and maintaining fire flows. Generators installed on the five sewer 

lift stations surrounding Pine Mountain Lake will maintain sewer service while 

preventing sanitary sewer overflows that could contaminate the lake and 

create a public and environmental health hazard. 

79


	Agenda
	AGENDA
	TELECONFERENCE AGENDA
	Call to Order
	Roll Call of Board Members

	Item 4Ai Fire Report
	GCSD Board Report 3-1 to 3-31-2021 Final
	Staff Report

	GCSD-March 2021 Call Stats
	GCSD 3-2021


	Item 4Aii GM Report
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL
	BIG CREEK/2G CLEARWELL PROJECT
	DOWNTOWN GROVELAND/BOF SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM RENOVATION PROJECT
	ADDITIONAL ITEMS OF INTEREST
	The “American Jobs Plan”

	Item 4Aii GM Report Fire FAQ.pdf
	Frequently Asked Questions – April 6, 2021
	What is Measure V?
	Why is Measure V being Proposed?
	What Have the Fire Departments Done to Reduce Cost?
	Aren’t We Doing Okay Now? Aren’t Fire Department Response Times Good?
	What is the Tuolumne County Fire Authority?
	If approved, How Much Will Measure V Cost Me and How is it Collected?
	What will Measure V Pay For?
	Will Measure V Reduce Response Times?
	Can Measure V Money be Diverted Away from Fire Services?
	Will Tax Money Generated in Our Community go to Fund Our Fire Department?
	Where Can I Find More Information on Measure V?
	What Accountability Measures Are In Place For Measure V?
	If this Measure Passes, When Will It Go Into Effect And How Long Will It Be In Place?
	What happens if my area approves this measure but others don't?
	What will happen if Measure V doesn’t pass?
	Why aren't the entities doing  separate measures?
	If Measure V passes, will my fire department lose funding from other sources?
	What is the purpose of the 2% annual increase on this tax?
	Why aren’t Twain Harte, Strawberry and MiWuk/Sugar Pine Districts participating?


	Evacuation_Routes_RFP_Final_April_2021.pdf
	2. Recitals
	Tuolumne County Transportation Council  (Insert Name/Contact information)
	A. Withholding of payments due to the Consultant under this Agreement until the Consultant complies to the TCTC’s satisfaction, and/or
	B. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part.




	Item 4Aiii Operations Report 
	Item 5A Meeting Minutes
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA
	Approve Order of Agenda
	Public Comment

	Item 5B Meeting Minutes
	SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA

	Item 5C AP Report
	Item 5C AP Cover Sheet
	Item 5C AP Report

	Item 5D Battalion Chief Jude Acosta
	Item 5D Submittal Battalion Chief Jude Acosta
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 5D Resolution Battalion Chief Jude Acosta
	RESOLUTION 10-2021
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY


	Item 6A JPA and Measure V
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 7A 2021_22 Budget Preparation
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 7B Appointment of an AD HOC Committee(s)
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 7C Inundation Study
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 7D Emergency Generators
	Item 7D Submittal Generator Budget amendment
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 7D PSPS Budget Narrative




